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OUR VISION
We aspire to be the City of choice for
ourselves and future generations in a clean,
safe, friendly, economically viable and
sustainable environment.

OUR MISSION
To provide good governance, prudent financial management, enhancing
Parksville's lifestyle through effective leadership, community involvement
and commitment to providing services in an effective, efficient manner to
all residents
The City of Parksville is
located on land within
the traditional,
ancestral and unceded
territories of the Coast
Salish people, including
Snaw-Naw-As
First Nation
and
Qualicum First Nation.
Qualicum First Nation.

OUR CORPORATE VALUES
Quality Service - We succeed by focusing our attention on serving the citizenry of our
community. We believe in proactively involving our citizens in identifying community
needs and deciding upon solutions.
Fiscal Responsibility - We are the caretakers of our City. We believe that
implementing our community vision requires careful financial planning and
accountability to our citizens. We will be fair and prudent and our expenditures will
be affordable. We will save for our community's future.
Environmental Awareness - We are stewards of our land and our water. Its fragility
and the resources it provides us deserve our respect. We believe that we will keep
our community lively and healthy by preserving, protecting and rehabilitating our
natural environment.
Inclusiveness - We will foster an environment which stimulates professional
excellence and encourages contributions by all employees.

The mission, vision and corporate values statements for the City of Parksville
are guidelines for both current and future Councils and staff when
setting budgets and identifying projects and priorities.
They are living documents, intended to be reviewed by Council on an annual basis to
ensure the goals set are achievable and the vision for the City is appropriate.
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Contact Information
General Inquiries .................................... 250 248-6144
After-hours Emergency .......................... 250 248-6144
Administration ....................................... 250 954-3060
Building Permits and Inspections ........... 250 954-3065
Business Licences ................................... 250 954-4650
Bylaw ...................................................... 250 954-4650
Chief Administrative Officer .................. 250 954-4660
Communications ................................... 250 954-3073

Engineering ............................................ 250 951-2484
Emergency Preparedness ...................... 250 954-4672
Finance ................................................... 250 248-6144
Fire Department non-emergency........... 250 248-3242
Human Resources .................................. 250 954-3081
Office of the Mayor ................................ 250 954-3060
Planning.................................................. 250 954-3061
Operations ............................................. 250 248-5412
Tax and Utility Billing ............................. 250 954-4653

parksville.ca | info@parksville.ca

100 Jensen Avenue East
PO Box 1390
Parksville BC V9P 2H3
250 248-6144
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Message from the Mayor

Welcome to the City of Parksville’s 2020 annual report. On behalf
of Council, I am pleased to present the report and hope you find
the information both informative and helpful. Although this
report fulfills a mandatory legislative requirement, it also
provides an opportunity to reflect upon and celebrate our many
successes over the past year. Although 2020 was a year like no
other, we adjusted to the challenging and evolving circumstances
presented by the COVID-19 global pandemic.
“As we take a

moment
to celebrate our
accomplishments, it is
important to
recognize the extent
to which our residents
and businesses
embraced the many
unexpected changes
during this past year.”

In accordance with provincial legislation, the annual report
provides an overview of the City's financial performance for the
year ended December 31, 2020, and showcases the City's
achievements, serving as a reminder of our continued commitment to service excellence.
Council and City staff recognize the importance of municipal operations and are
dedicated to ensuring businesses, residents and visitors can live, work and prosper in
Parksville.
The Council adopted strategic plan in 2019 established a road map to guide policy
decisions until the end of its term in October 2022. We are dedicated to demonstrating
the values of integrity, teamwork, fiscal prudence, transparent governance, public
engagement and effective service delivery as we work toward the five priorities identified
as housing, healthcare, recreation, community safety and economic development.
As we take a moment to celebrate our accomplishments, it is important to recognize the
extent to which our residents and businesses embraced the many unexpected changes
during this past year. On behalf of Council and staff, our sincere thank you for going
above and beyond to keep us all safe. As well, my gratitude to Council and staff for their
efforts in 2020.
It is a privilege to serve as Parksville's Mayor and as we look to a return to normal post
pandemic, we will come together to ensure Parksville remains one of the best cities in
which to live on Vancouver Island. I look forward to reporting on our accomplishments in
the 2021 annual report.
Sincerely,

ED MAYNE, Mayor
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Mayor and Council 2018-2022
Mayor and Council for the City
of Parksville were elected for a
four-year term in October 2018
with the next municipal election
in October 2022.
Each member of Council
represents the City at large and
is appointed to both City and
regional committees. Council is
committed to ensuring policies
established and decisions made
are in the best interest of the
City and the community for now
and for future generations.
Council meetings are held on
the first and third Monday of
each month. Agendas are posted
to the City's website and meetings are webstreamed.
Mayor Ed Mayne
Mayor from 2008-2011; elected again in 2018
mayor@parksville.ca

Councillor Mark Chandler
Elected to Council in 2018
CouncillorChandler@parksville.ca

(from left to right)

Councillor Al Greir
Councillor Doug O’Brien
Councillor Marilyn Wilson
Mayor Ed Mayne
Councillor Mark Chandler
Councillor Adam Fras
Councillor Teresa Patterson

Councillor Adam Fras
Elected to Council in 2018
CouncillorFras@parksville.ca

Councillor Al Greir
On Council from 2008 to 2016; elected again in 2018
CouncillorGreir@parksville.ca

Councillor Doug O’Brien
Elected to Council in 2018
CouncillorOBrien@parksville.ca

Councillor Teresa Patterson
On Council from 2006 to 2011; elected again in 2014
CouncillorPatterson@parksville.ca

Councillor Marilyn Wilson
Elected to Council in 2018
CouncillorWilson@parksville.ca
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Message from
Chief Administrative Officer
On behalf of City of Parksville staff, it is my pleasure to
present the 2020 annual report and comment on our
accomplishments over the past year.
In 2020, the impact of the COVID-19 global pandemic
affected our community, our health, the way we connect
with each other and work together. 2020 was a challenging
year for City staff as we adjusted to the changing workplace
and moved into what we call the “new normal”. Much of
our focus in 2020 was dedicated to ensuring the health and
well-being of our employees in the workplace and the safety of our residents.

“City staff, residents,
businesses, and
community partners
worked together
to put the necessary
measures in place
to keep our
community safe.”

I am proud of our staff, who went above and beyond to continue serving the community while
mitigating the effects of the pandemic, protecting City assets and keeping the City clean and
safe. From March through 2020, our staff adjusted operations to the rapidly changing public
health orders. The health and safety of our staff is always a key priority, but this was especially
challenging during the pandemic. I wish to acknowledge the anxiety and stress this caused for
everyone, including our employees. As a result of staff adhering to COVID protocols and
adapting to do their work safely, we were able to successfully maintain municipal business
continuity and provide a high-level of services. Staff were dedicated to playing their part to
prevent the spread of COVID-19 in our community.
Through the pandemic and into 2021, the City’s emergency management team supported the
public with consistent, regular and informative pandemic related communications to create
awareness of COVID-19 and how to mitigate risks to public safety. Weekly, and at times daily,
meetings were held with provincial health representatives and we worked closely with the
experts and City Council to provide signage, releases and links to the evolving information
coming from many sources.
As public health orders changed and people needed to access outdoor amenities, staff worked
to open public spaces safely. City staff, residents, businesses, and community partners worked
together to put the necessary measures in place to keep our community safe. Despite the
turbulent year, City business did not stop. We continued to provide services to our residents,
albeit in different ways. We all became familiar with Zoom and virtual meetings and finding
other ways to communicate with residents. We accomplished many important initiatives and
completed over forty projects based on Council strategic priorities. This report provides an
overview of these accomplishments.
Thank you to staff for their dedication and commitment to each other and to the community
during this unprecedented year. We are a stronger team having gone through this crisis
together and several creative ideas and practices will continue to enhance efficient service
delivery for our residents even when the COVID-19 pandemic has ended.

Sincerely,

CAOIMHE (KEEVA) KEHLER
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Keeva Kehler
Chief Administrative Officer
kkehler@parksville.ca
Lucky Butterworth
Director of Finance
lbutterworth@parksville.ca
Belinda Woods
Director of Operations
bwoods@parksville.ca
Blaine Russell
Director of Community Planning and Building
brussell@parksville.ca
Marc Norris
Fire Chief
mnorris@parksville.ca

The City’s chief administrative officer, Keeva Kehler, works
closely with Mayor and Council and is Council’s principal
advisor on matters of policy. The CAO is responsible to
Council for the efficient administration of all municipal
activities and ensures Council’s goals and objectives are
achieved by providing strategic leadership. The CAO
oversees the preparation of annual budgets, programs and
policy initiatives and establishes standards and priorities to
ensure the consistent delivery of high-quality City services.
A critical responsibility for the CAO is to ensure all
operations are conducted not only within the framework
of the City’s values and goals but within legal legislative
requirements. As well, the CAO liaises with other
government agencies to provide Council with the
information they require to develop plans and policies.
Senior management works as a team to ensure the
effective and efficient administration of the City.

Trina Harrison
Director of Human Resources
tharrison@parksville.ca
Joe Doxey
Acting Director of Engineering
jdoxey@parksville.ca
Amanda Weeks
Manager of Administrative Services, Corporate Officer
aweeks@parksville.ca
Deb Tardiff
Manager of Communications
dtardiff@parksville.ca
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Council's Strategic Focus Areas

Adopted by Council in July 2019, the 2019-2022 strategic plan provides a roadmap for Council, staff and the
community to support implementation of five key strategic priorities enabling residents to live, work and thrive
in our City.
The strategic planning journey began in January 2019 with the Mayor’s roundtable event; a conversation with
residents to determine the priority actions the community wishes Council to focus on during their term of office.
A series of Committee of the Whole meetings were held to discuss each core priority and an online community
survey received 425 responses. All initiatives were intended to understand what is most important to residents.
Working from the community input, staff and Council
members collaborated to develop a strategic plan based
on five core priorities. Council and staff are committed to
making progress on these topics within budgetary and
human resource constraints. Maintaining sustainable tax
rates is a key principle for Council and many objectives
will require several years to implement.
Council will monitor implementation on an ongoing basis
and continue to update the community on milestones
and project completion.
The 2019-2022 strategic plan and the planning process
may be viewed at City Hall/Strategic Plan.
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2019 Council Strategic Priorities - Completed 2020

The strategic priorities listed were approved by Council in 2019 and completed in 2020.

COMMUNITY SAFETY
1.
2.
3.
4.

Fire department grant application
UBCM grant for group lodging – application and reporting requirements and obtain supplies
Implement security camera rebate program
Implement bylaw compliance and enforcement policy for proactive enforcement of priority
community issues
5. Craig Street lighting options report
6. Implement the traffic bylaw amendments to address efficient movement of pedestrian flow
and access on downtown streets

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
7. Review road standards

8. Implement expedited program for expanded seating (COVID response)
9. Food trucks licence of occupation tender – amendment for COVID response
10. Jensen Block land sale

RECREATION
11. Memorial bench and tree program implementation
12. 75th birthday celebration – establish working group, special events coordination
and planning
13. P Kucey memorial plaque in Parksville Community Park
14. Oceanside Minor Baseball Association - Springwood upgrades
15. Parks and Open Space Committee terms of reference
16. Parks and Open Space Committee – operational activation and meetings initiated
17. Outdoor stage venue - grant application to support Beach Festival Society
18. Retegno Park renovation – capital project
19. Garbage cans donated to Parksville and District Museum
20. Approve landscaping plan for Museum – staff advice and support
21. Foster Park gazebo installed
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2019 Council Strategic Priorities - Completed 2020 (cont’d)

HOUSING
22. 600 Alberni Highway site servicing assessment
23. Water pressure issue on Butler Avenue – rebate implemented
24. Explore options for partnering with Habitat for Humanity on housing for families
25. OCP amendment to support affordable housing
26. Partner with Parksville Lions for affordable housing projects
27. Rezone 130 Shelly for affordable housing project – defeated

HEALTHCARE
28. Lobby Province to get LPNs/ pilot for Parksville/ Oceanside
29. Needle bylaw regulation
30. Liaise with Island Health to explore options for donation of space for doctors or
health care providers

MULTIPLE OBJECTIVES
31. BGCCVI Childcare Spaces grant application

OPERATIONAL
32. CPI adjustment for Council salary - in line with CUPE
33. Procedure bylaw amendments
34. Change Council meeting times
35. Security tender approval
36. Amend the officer bylaw
37. Emergency program coordinator – mid-event update on COVID
38. Railway tower condition assessment/ demo
39. Marks Nature Park research on trust
40. Soft Shores art exhibit in PCTC
41. Joan Lemoine recognition - Key to City and celebration
42. Banner program to recognize World War I and World War II veterans
43. Handmade for Hope research/ liaison with ICCS
44. New phone system at PCTC, operations and fire hall
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2021 Council Strategic Priorities
Council recognizes the importance of strategic planning and the setting of priorities, goals
and objectives. Council’s priorities for 2021 are identified here.

COMMUNITY SAFETY
1. Renew emergency management agreements to provide emergency preparedness
services to residents
2. Reactivate Tier 3 Auxiliary RCMP program
3. Implement proactive bylaw enforcement
4. Fire Services Commission (phase 1 feasibility)
5. Fire Service Review (phase 2 tentative)
6. UBCM grant application for emergency support services to enhance response
7. Fire truck renewal/replacement
8. Negotiate rights-of-way and rail crossings with Island Corridor Foundation,
Southern Railway Vancouver Island. Secures access to the City’s drinking water
infrastructure
9. Craig Street enhanced lighting pilot

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
10. Daycare gap analysis partnership within region
11. Development Cost Charge (DCC) review
12. Parksville Downtown Business Association wayfinding program
13. Special Committee of the Whole on economic development
14. Asset management implementation

RECREATION
15. Parksville Community Park traffic circulation plan
16. Outdoor performance stage construction management
17. Transfer of District 69 ice arena to City from RDN; Curling Club lease and identify
maintenance and inspection requirements
18. Rathtrevor Greenway design - intergovernmental and stakeholder consultation
19. Oceanside Minor Baseball Association Springwood Park upgrades
20. Pool and aquatic centre feasibility studies and public engagement
21. Parksville Community Park drainage plan
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2021 Council Strategic Priorities (cont’d)

HOUSING
22. Continued engagement with non-profit groups such as Parksville Lions Housing Society
and BC Housing to seek opportunities for partnerships
23. Affordable housing agreements

HEALTHCARE
24. Pilot project for Licensed Practical Nurses, projects to attract doctors, lobby
senior government
25. COVID-19 business continuity to support staff and community
26. Needle bylaw regulation

MULTIPLE OBJECTIVES
27. Marks Nature Park hazard tree management and capital renewal project
28. Railway tower donation – transfer of asset and coordination of relocation
29. Pool borrowing and referendum
30. Pool and aquatic centre detailed design
31. BGC Central Vancouver Island lease options
32. CCR grant - community park upgrades, pickleball, new washrooms and sports flex space
33. Rathtrevor trail construction

OPERATIONAL
34. First Nations reconciliation
35. Website upgrade and replacement
36. Urban forest strategy
37. Cedar management strategy
38. Performance program for senior managers
39. Report to Council on support for Parksville Beach Festival Society
40. Web map replacement
41. Fibre optic cable install to connect with operations
42. Legal care files (various)
43. Implement tree rebate program
44. Banner expansion project (2022)
45. New accounting standards implementation
46. Purchasing policy update
47. Englishman River Water Service – geobag installation
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Disqualified Council Members
DECLARATION AND IDENTIFICATION OF
DISQUALIFIED COUNCIL MEMBERS FOR 2020
Pursuant to the Community Charter, there were no disqualified Council members during the 2020 year.
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City Highlights
We are proud of our achievements in 2020 and provide
some of the highlights from this past, most unusual year.
With the global pandemic declared in March, staff
worked throughout 2020 to adjust operations to
meet public health orders. Staff from the City were
deployed to the virtual and physical emergency
operations centre from March 18 continuing
through 2021. All City departments were affected
by the COVID-19 restrictions and evolving safety
protocols. Keeping our community as safe as
possible during the pandemic was paramount for
staff. External communications with ongoing COVIDrelated information helped the community navigate
the pandemic. Although planning was well
underway, celebrating the City’s 75th birthday in
2020 was postponed.
In July, the Investing in Canada
Infrastructure Program,
Community, Culture and
Recreation Infrastructure
Stream, the City received
$1,263,521 for
improvements to public
spaces in the Parksville
Community Park. The
project includes
construction of a new outdoor
stage and a multi-use gathering space.
As well, the stage project is supported with a grant
from Island Coastal Economic Trust for $204,750.
Work is well underway on the Beach Festival
initiated outdoor performance stage for the
Parksville Community Park.
The operating agreement with the Parksville
Community Centre Society was not renewed at
December 31, 2020, and a grant application was
submitted to the Childcare BC New Spaces Fund to
secure funding for 91 licensed childcare spaces. The
facility which will be operated by BGC Central
Vancouver Island will also include youth and family
programming.

Ownership of arena (curling rink) in the Parksville
Community Park was transferred from the Regional
District of Nanaimo to the City.
Joan Lemoine was recognized
by the City on occasion of her
90th birthday. July 6 was
proclaimed as “Joan Lemoine
Day in the City of Parksville” and
she was presented with the Key
to the City. Sadly, Joan died in
January 2021 and as an
ambassador and long-time
friend of the City, will be missed
by all.
Workshops with staff and
Council and two
stakeholder
engagement sessions
were held to inform
the feasibility study
for the Parksville
Aquatic and Recreation
Centre. Public
engagement was postponed
until such time as public health
orders allow in-person engagement.
Early in the year, we began the extensive research
to find information on the World War I and World
War II veterans listed on the Cenotaph. In October,
we launched the City’s veterans banner program
thirty-one banners placed on lamp standards along
Highway 19A. This program will continue to
recognize the lives lost and sacrifices made during
the two world wars.
A new online payment system now accepts credit
card payments for bylaw infractions, business
licences and comfort letters.
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City Highlights (cont’d)
The arboretum in the Parksville Community Park
was awarded Level 1 Accreditation by ArbNet.
Upgrades to Parksville Community Park included a
new bench at the splash park and new playground
equipment installation. Stormwater management
master plan project is underway for the Parksville
Community Park.
Major upgrades to Shelly Creek
included a new 50-foot
pedestrian foot bridge
and significant trail
resurfacing.
Foster Park
projects included
a new picnic
shelter, fencing,
and irrigation along
with new plantings.
Top Bridge, Woodland, Foster, Marks, and
Springwood parks saw extensive ongoing tree
maintenance.
Design work continues on the streetscape and utility
upgrades for Hirst Avenue West and Memorial
Avenue. The Memorial Plaza will be a feature of this
project to be completed in 2021.
The Englishman River Water Service water
treatment plant was commissioned in January and
in 2020, 1.6 cubic metres of water ran through the
plant.
In May, Council approved a motion to allow
restaurant seating on sidewalks and parking lots to
create more outdoor dining to better meet physical
distancing requirements and additional seating or
safe queuing. As well, business owners may use
their onsite private parking to expand their seating
without a permit.

A new online tool, accessible from the City’s
website, provides residents and businesses with an
efficient way to report non-emergency operational
issues.
In June, Dunbar Way was named in honour of longtime resident, Marge Dunbar, as part of the City’s
75th birthday recognition. Mrs Marge Dunbar passed
in February 2020 at the age of 100.
With no door-to-door
collection in
neighbourhoods
for the annual
food and toy
drive due to
COVID-19,
Parksville
firefighters shifted
gears to collect cash
donations for the Salvation
Army food bank. Physically distanced and
masked, firefighters collected $75,644 over a
weekend in November in their Fill the Boots for
Food drive.
The Parksville Volunteer Fire Department offered to
help residents celebrate a milestone event in a
special way with drive-bys for residents in the
Parksville Fire Protection Area. Birthday drive-bys
were offered for ages 12 and under or 75 and older
as well as special milestone celebrations.
Firefighters volunteered their time and 177 drive-by
events which included birthdays for residents
between the ages of two and 104 and wedding
anniversaries were offered in 2020. As well, there
was a drive-by to celebrate Dr Molly’s graduation, a
new veterinarian, completing eight years of
schooling.
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2020

Services and Operations

City of Parksville | 2020 ANNUAL REPORT | 17

ADMINISTRATION

What We Do
The administrative services department is responsible for bylaw compliance, information technology, emergency
management, communications, and "best practices" in matters relating to Council activities. The department is
responsible for all aspects of Council and Committee meetings, corporate legal requirements, claims
management, bylaw preparation, reporting procedures, corporate records management, freedom of information
and elections. Staff ensures all procedural and technical aspects of the Community Charter, Local Government
Act, City bylaws and Council procedures are met and serves as a link between Council, City staff and the public.

ACHIEVEMENTS
•

•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

53 Council meetings held:
o 27 open Council meetings, with 275
resolutions passed.
o 23 closed Council meetings with 85
resolutions passed.
o Two public hearings.
o One Committee of the Whole meeting.
o More than 40 staff reports to Council,
written and submitted by administration
staff.
Six new bylaws adopted.
15 amendments made to ten different bylaws.
o Expanded revitalization area in the
downtown revitalization tax exemption
bylaw.
o Amended annual remuneration increase in
Council remuneration and expenses bylaw.
14 corporate policies amended; one new policy
created, adopted and implemented.
Coffee with the Mayor sessions held twice.
23 freedom of information requests received in
2020, compared to 36 in 2019.
Administered the annual permissive taxation
exemption application process in conjunction
with the finance department.
Purchased the curling rink building from the
Regional District of Nanaimo for $1.
Approved in principle the offer to purchase the
Bagshaw laneway property for $440,000.

•
•

•
•

•

Approved in principle, offer to purchase the
Jensen Block for $2.5 million.
In collaboration with the BGC of Central
Vancouver Island, submitted grant application
for the provincial Childcare BC New Spaces Fund
to secure funding for a licensed childcare facility
in Parksville.
Entered into an agreement with School District
No. 69 to use kitchen facilities at the Parksville
Community Centre for home economics classes.
Mayor presented Joan Lemoine with the Key to
the City in honour of her 90th birthday; also
renamed Room 100 in the PCTC as the Joan
Lemoine Room in recognition of her volunteer
efforts for the City of Parksville.
Parksville Aquatic and Recreation Centre
feasibility study:
o Workshops to review background data and
recreation needs with senior staff, review of
Council goals.
o Two stakeholder engagement sessions.
o Sessions with staff and Council to determine
staffing/operations of proposed facility;
aquatics workshop; future trends in
recreation.
o Prepared a detailed budget and work plan
for the next phase of the project including
costs and timelines for a referendum for
borrowing and consultant costs for design,
public engagement and project
management.
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ADMINISTRATION

BYLAW COMPLIANCE
What We Do
The bylaw compliance department provides the citizens of Parksville with a variety of services related to
regulatory issues. Where possible, the bylaw department attempts to gain compliance with the municipal bylaws
before resorting to enforcement actions such as issuing tickets or seeking stronger legal solutions. Social issues
are handled with compassion, fairness and empathy.

ACHIEVEMENTS
•

•
•

•
•
•

3,922 bylaw related enquiries (decrease of 143
from 2019); investigated 590 calls (compared to
541 in 2019) and issued 328 tickets (553 in
2019).
296 provincial order enquires; bylaw
investigated 27 COVID-19 complaints.
In March, the bylaw enforcement COVID-19
order came into effect through the office of the
Minister of Public Safety and Solicitor General.
The City responded to changing demands during
beginning of the pandemic and suspended
ticketing unless a safety issue. Until August 4,
2020, bylaw compliance issued warning tickets
only.
Top three proactive encounters for 2020 were
homeless issues (squatting, refuse, etc), parking
and animal control.
Top bylaw calls investigated in 2020 were animal
control (101), parking/traffic (95), homeless
issues (90) and unsightly properties (81)
The drain of time and resources dealing with
homeless issues continues to be a priority. On an
average day, 25-35% of the bylaw officers’ shift
is dealing with homeless issues which results in a
withdrawal of service in other areas. The City
and RCMP continue to work closely to address
this challenge. In 2020, bylaw received
complaints about 94 homeless camps. In total,
329 person hours were spent addressing
complaints about homelessness in 2020.

•

•
•
•

•

Four ticket disputes were filed in 2020; one
withdrawn as compliance was achieved, one
withdrawn by the screening officer, one upheld
and paid for before adjudication, and one went
to adjudication and was upheld.
Homeless camp removed at Marks Nature Park.
112 new business licence applications received
(compared to 163 in 2019) and 812 were
renewed (compared to 843 in 2019).
An additional bylaw compliance officer shared
with the Town of Qualicum Beach through
October, helped with extra enforcement during
the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic.
Amendment Bylaw No. 1486.11 helped give the
compliance officers the tools to restrict some of
the homeless issues in the downtown core.
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ADMINISTRATION

COMMUNICATIONS
What We Do
In communications, we are focused on keeping residents informed about City operations plus decisions and
directions from Council and most importantly engaging with residents to seek input to inform Council about
community interests and priorities. Through such tools as news releases, key publications, the City’s websites
and social media, the City ensures policies, programs, local government process and priorities are strategically
communicated to encourage community understanding.

ACHIEVEMENTS
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•

Information about programs and initiatives
distributed to the community through about 150
news releases
Assist with recruitment campaigns for Parksville
and Qualicum Beach fire departments
Assist with Parksville Fire Department and
District 69 Fill the Boots for Food Drive.
Monthly publications - City news page in the PQB
News and two enewsletters for Emergency
Management Oceanside and City subscribers.
Expanded City’s social media content program
with substantial growth in the popular Instagram
platform; combined followership exceeds 9,700.
Let’s Talk Parksville continues to be a successful
online engagement platform with detailed
information about City projects/programs.
Residents provide comments, ask questions and
signup for updates.
Manage City, EMO, Parksville Fire Department
and Englishman River Water Service websites.
Submitted several grant applications.
Public information officer role in emergency
operations centre, activated due to pandemic.

•

•

•
•
•
•

COVID communications assisted community
as pandemic evolved from declaration
through 2021. City and EMO releases,
bulletins, enewsletters, newspaper page,
social media and websites. Sixty COVIDrelated bulletins distributed.
#StayandPlayParksville photo contest with
entries in two categories; places you go and
the things you do while exploring our
community.
Managed veteran banner program.
Managed planning for 75th birthday events.
Surveys determined budget priorities, how
residents wished to communicate during
pandemic, and neighbourhood park priorities.
Oversaw the goose management program.
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ADMINISTRATION

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT OCEANSIDE
What We Do
The emergency programs from the City of Parksville and Town of Qualicum Beach collaborate to provide largescale emergency support and disaster service to Oceanside residents. The Emergency Management Oceanside
(EMO) partnership provides an efficient, effective and cooperative approach to managing emergencies in our
region. The resources from the two local governments provide professional 24/7 emergency support and EMO
develops and undertake preparedness, mitigation, response and recovery planning.

ACHIEVEMENTS
•

•

•
•

•

The COVID-19 pandemic created many
challenges for every aspect of the emergency
program. Many public outreach projects
normally undertaken by EMO were cancelled
or postponed for safety and to allow staff to
conduct emergency operations in support of
Provincial Health Officer orders.
In collaboration with the Town of Qualicum
Beach staff, EMO staffed a virtual and physical
Emergency Operations Centre daily from
March 18, 2020, continuing into 2021. 17 staff
from the two communities rotated through the
EOC during this time.
In response to provincial orders, EMO updated
the pandemic response and business
continuity plans for both local governments.
The EMO volunteer coordinator maintained
training and readiness of the two volunteer
response groups within EMO. Regular
meetings were held virtually, and COVID safety
response plans were created and implemented
to complement provincial orders for
everyone’s safety.
Emergency Management Oceanside including
the Oceanside Emergency Support Services
(OESS) and Oceanside Emergency
Communications Team (OECT) volunteers
activated for 39 alerts and directly responded
to 12 emergency events in 2020.

•
•

•

•

EMO completed the emergency pet support
trailer with improvements to the interior as
well exterior branding.
There were about 70 volunteers within the
EMO program in 2020 and the program
continues to grow.
o Volunteers donated 2,268 hours of their
time to the region in 2020.
o Based on a 2015 provincial rate of $28 for
each hour spent by our volunteers, the
region received about $63,504 worth of
volunteer time in 2020.
OESS undertook virtual training aligning with
the provincial ESS modernization program
developed by EMBC. ESS modernization allows
options to provide faster support to residents
displaced by an emergency or disaster when
appropriate based on circumstance.
OECT continued to develop and exercise their
operational readiness by undertaking exercises
utilizing their personal home radio equipment.
These exercises proved a level of readiness
from the team in the event members are not
able to access government supplied
equipment.
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ADMINISTRATION

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
What We Do
IT staff manages all City-owned and operated technology, including hardware such as desktop computers,
laptops, cell phones and tablets. IT also manages the City's software, from basic programs like Microsoft Office to
more tailored software specific to the City's needs. IT staff ensures data security for records management and to
meet protection of privacy legislation requirements.

ACHIEVEMENTS
Key accomplishments included implementation of
the new Cisco IP phone system and new Cisco
network switches with PoE capabilities, to support
the new phone system.
• Migration from the ArcMap environment to
ArcGIS Pro for map production and analysis.
• Responded to 1,011 help desk requests in 2020,
compared to 843 in 2019.
• Remote meeting software Zoom was configured
for use in the City, primarily to deal with the
COVID-19 pandemic. This also included
modifying and changing the Council chambers to
be able to broadcast meetings via Zoom, and
have Councillors remotely connect into the
meeting, so it can be recorded and uploaded to
Council meeting repository online. Upgraded all
domain workstations to standard version of
Office 365/Teams/ Adobe Reader.

•

•

•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Provided timely setup of systems and processes
to help deal with COVID-19 restrictions; included
setting up departments and employees with the
ability to work from outside of the office, or in
different office spaces, using secure
connections, and preparing computer systems
for working at home.
Deployed an online calls for service web enabled
reporting software so the public can directly
report calls for service to departments. Allows
reporting from mobile devices, personal
computers, or other Internet connected devices.
Completed setup and configuration of an online
payments system that allows payments of bylaw
and parking tickets, business licences, and
comfort letters, using VISA or MasterCard.
Standardized meeting room video conference
experience in all rooms.
Upgraded wireless access points throughout City
facilities to improve wireless access
speed/quality.
Began rollout of Microsoft Teams for online
meetings and chat communications.
Established three-year Microsoft Enterprise
Agreement for desktop and server-based
software licensing.
Acquired 2020 orthophoto and oblique imagery.
Reconciled underground utilities (water,
sanitary, storm) with engineering department to
better support 25-year capital plan and NAMS.
Redesigned parcel fabric to act as a source for
parcel, land use zoning and park data.
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COMMUNITY PLANNING AND BUILDING

What We Do
The planning and building department manage all land
use and building matters and provides a variety of
information about land use regulations and data, specific
properties, demographics and planning research. The
department also administers the permits required for
building construction and other development related
permits and plays a role in researching planning issues
and planning for the future of the City.
The department administers the zoning and development
bylaw, administers and implements the Official
Community Plan and processes development permits and
applications, including building permits, zoning
amendment applications, development permit
applications, subdivision applications and development
variance permits.

ACHIEVEMENTS
Zoning Amendment Bylaws
Zoning amendment bylaw applications prepared for
introduction and first reading:
• Agricultural A-1 to Industrial I-1 at 1350 Greig
Road (application withdrawn).
• Zoning text amendment at 115 McMillan Street to
increase maximum number of apartment units
and increase Floor Area Ratio under the
Comprehensive Development CD19-A zone.
• Single Family Residential RS-1 to new Tourist
Commercial and Residential High Density Zone at
480 and 490 Island Highway West.
• Medium Density Residential RS-2 to proposed
new Comprehensive Development CD-30 zone at
243 Corfield Street South to facilitate five
dwelling units of which two are intended to have
tenure under BC Housing’s Affordable Home
Ownership Program.

ACHIEVEMENTS
Development Variance Permits
Development variance permit applications reviewed
and prepared for issuance:
• Relax parking requirement for 12-unit townhome
development at 352 Hirst Avenue West.
• Vary minimum lot width requirement at 405 Pym
Street North.
• Vary minimum lot width and parcel frontage
requirements at 412 Craig Street.
• Relax front yard setback at 243 Corfield Street
South.
• Sign variance and encroachment agreement at
371 Alberni Highway (in progress).
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COMMUNITY PLANNING AND BUILDING

ACHIEVEMENTS

ACHIEVEMENTS

Development Permits

Building Permits

Development permit applications reviewed and prepared for
issuance to facilitate the following:
• 20-unit townhomes at 463 Hirst Avenue West.
• Three-storey mixed commercial and multi-unit residential
building (16 dwelling units) at 171 Jensen Avenue West.
• Carriage house at 126 Maple Crescent.
• Two four-storey apartment buildings totalling 122 units
at 377 Moilliet Street South.
• 12-unit townhouse development at 352 Hirst Avenue
West.
• Vehicle storage building at 1128 Herring Gull Way.
• Land preparation, fencing and sub-base grading at 1246
Industrial Way.
• General form and character of small-lot residential
building exteriors at 249 Finholm Street North.
• Mixed tourist commercial and multi-unit residential
development, 143 units in total, at 1180 Resort Drive.
• Five-unit townhome building at 243 Corfield Street South.
• House renovation at 345 Sutherland Place.
• Addition to single-family residence at 1450 Seaway Drive.
• 84-site campground/RV park, restaurant and three
accessory buildings at 161 Island Highway West.
• Fencing for individual courtyards within an existing
townhouse development at 119 Moilliet Street North.
• Realignment and enhancement of a water channel,
parkland dedication and temporary building at 440 Island
Highway West (in progress).
• 10-unit three-storey, residential building with commercial
on the main floor at 155 Hirst Avenue East.
• Eight-unit townhouse building and 79-unit apartment
building at 360, 364 and 368 Moilliet Street South (371
Alberni Highway).
• Two drive-thru restaurants at 685, 669 and 665 Island
Highway East and 670 Pioneer Crescent (in progress).
• General form and character of mixed-use building and
associated site improvements at 187 and 193 Bagshaw
(in progress).

Building permits issued:
• 106 building permits were issued with a total
value of construction of $71,558,545.
• 33 of the permits were for new residential
construction consisting of 30 single family
dwellings and 310 multi-family units.

Housing Agreements
Housing agreements authorization bylaws adopted:
• 15-year term for 77 affordable housing units at
360, 364 and 368 Moilliet Street South (371
Alberni Highway).
• 15-year term for 20 affordable housing units at
270 Dunbar Way.
• 15-year term for 28 affordable housing units at
232 Dunbar Way.

Subdivisions
Subdivision applications for preliminary layout
approval or final approval:
• Two-lot subdivision at 405 Pym Street North.
• Two-lot subdivision at 412 Craig Street.
• Two-lot subdivision at 511 Soriel Road.
• 30-lot subdivision at 249 Finholm Street North.
• Four-lot subdivision at 1180 Resort Drive.
• 12-lot subdivision at 331 and 343 Moilliet Street
South.
• Two-lot subdivision at 483 Doehle Avenue.
• 14-lot subdivision at 580 Sanderson Road.
• Two-lot subdivision at 479 Allwood Road.
• Two-lot subdivision at 371 Jensen Avenue West.
• Six-lot subdivision at 1175 Resort Drive.
• Two-lot subdivision at 371 Alberni Highway.
• Two-lot subdivision at 377 Moilliet Street.
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ENGINEERING

What We Do
The engineering department is responsible for the
technical aspects of municipal engineering such as
infrastructure and utility management, capital projects,
land development engineering, and support services.
The engineering department provides technical support
to the operations department and other City
departments and is responsible for the management of
engineering records, permits, and ensuring our
contracts and contractors are following our bylaws,
policies, and industry best practices and guidelines.
The engineering department has been improving
efficiencies through process evaluations, establishing
internal policies of practice allowing us to increase our
workload while reducing primary staffing costs to the
lowest level in five years.

ACHIEVEMENTS
•
•
•

•

•

•
•
•
•
•
•

Completed draft storm water management plan
for the Parksville Community Park.
Completed audit of City-owned and leased
streetlights resulting in $22,000 BC Hydro refund.
Completed the survey and detailed engineering
design, as well as the tendering for construction
of the fire training ground pavement and drainage
improvements.
Completed the survey and three conceptual
engineering design options for parking lot
expansion at Parksville Civic and Technology
Centre.
Working with the Parksville Beach Festival Society
as stakeholders to build team of professional
consultants to design/build Parksville Outdoor
Stage for the Performing Arts. Design was at the
approximate 50% level at end of 2020. Project will
be completed 2021.
Completed construction of Foster Park picnic
pavilion, complete with power kiosk.
Managed engineering design completion for
Bagshaw Street streetscape and utility renewal
project for early 2021 tendering for construction.
Tendered construction and achieved substantial
completion for the Pym Street North and Forsyth
Avenue utility renewal projects.
Managed the completion of engineering design
for the Hirst Avenue West streetscape and utility
upgrades project.
Managed the completion of 80% engineering
design for the Memorial Avenue streetscape and
utility upgrades project.
Researched and began implementation of new
form of contract (Negotiated Request for
Proposal) for construction services on Hirst
Avenue West and Memorial Avenue to provide
better management and coordination of
construction in sensitive downtown areas.
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ENGINEERING
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•
•
•

ACHIEVEMENTS (cont’d)
Completed technical report for the culvert
assessment on Shelly Creek at Blower Road.
Built the new 2021 - 2040 long-range financial plan
after a year-long review of the City’s critical assets
using ISO certified asset management planning
tools. The last major update was completed in 2008
with an external consultant.
Ongoing development support, application review
and construction inspection.
Ongoing work to renew and upgrade streetlight
fixtures to LED.
Provided contract administration for Parksville
Community Park stormwater management plan.
Conducted issuance of permits including 50 permits
for work on City property, two access permits, and
six permits for service connections.
Ongoing engineering duties including liaise with
community groups (Accessible Oceanside
Association, Springwood School Parent Advisory
Committee), traffic calming, engineering
inspections, and BC One Call processing.
Responded to 155 new requests for service.
694 utility location requests and BC One calls.
Provided engineering review and inspection of
more than 14 active development files, in planning
or construction stages.
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FINANCE

What We Do
The finance department is responsible for preparing the annual five-year financial plans, annual financial
statements, property tax and utility billings, dog licence billings and collections, other accounts receivable,
accounts payable, payroll, property insurance, investments, customer service, and reception. The finance
department has a full workload completing these regular duties. It also has other projects beyond the regular
day-to-day tasks which occur throughout the year.
2020 was a challenging year due to COVID-19 restrictions with an initial lock down of City hall facilities in March,
resulting in the pivot to online services and working from home procedures. During tax season, the finance
department reopened in a limited capacity for our residents to conduct business. We continue to run a hybrid
version of in-house and online services based on the recommendations of the public health officer. As a
municipality, we are proud we were able to provide face-to-face interaction for our residents and maintain a
high standard of customer service throughout the pandemic cycle.

ACHIEVEMENTS
Accounts Payable
• Implementation of more online correspondence
between vendors and accounts payable.
• Implementation of more electronic fund transfer
payments to vendors.
• Set up of email process for invoice payment
approvals between accounts payable and
supervisors/management.
• Assist with general finance support due to work
from home staff shortages.
Payroll
• Continuity of effective payroll service with longterm staff absence.
Front Counter/Reception
• Successfully managed front counter during initial
lockdown due to COVID-19 with reduced staff
capacity.
• Implemented procedures for opening finance
department to in-house service during tax
season, ensuring all business functions continued
in-person and remotely for residents.
• Trained a new casual and continued training on
new procedures for casual staff.
• Ensured the smooth rollout of the RDN garbage
service through effective communication with
residents and proactive problem solving.

Taxes and Utilities
• Successfully updated and reconciled 6,000 utility
accounts to reflect new garbage charges applied
due to RDN’s new automated curbside collection
service which commenced October 1, 2020.
• Facilitated and communicated the new deferral of
tax program to current users, with minimal issues.
Finance Administration
• Credit card payments now accepted online and
in-person for building permits and infraction
tickets.
• Met all legislated financial reporting deadlines.
• Positive comments from external auditor on
financial audit done remotely for the first time.
• Designed new property tax penalty scheme bylaw
(penalty delay) as per new provincial and Council
resolutions.
o Adapted financial processes and internal
controls to continue to provide outstanding
service to City residents and staff during
periods with significant COVID-19 restrictions.
o Worked collaboratively with Emergency
Management Oceanside and Town of
Qualicum Beach regarding financial reporting
and EMBC claims for COVID-19 response.
o “Best COVID response claim submission for
mid-island region”.
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HUMAN RESOURCES
OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

HUMAN RESOURCES
What We Do
Human Resources and Occupational Health and
Safety takes pride in creating policies, programs,
and procedures by optimizing the effectiveness of
its employees. HR/OHS provides strategic direction,
advice and support to the City’s management team
and serves as a resource to all employees.
HR has responsibility for all aspects of human
resources management including recruitment and
retention; workforce planning; orientation;
organizational training and development;
compensation; job evaluation; benefits; employee
relations; labour relations; collective agreement
interpretation; recognition; policy, procedure and
program development and maintaining compliance
with all applicable legislation and regulations.

ACHIEVEMENTS
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Organized annual staff appreciation event.
Recognized staff reaching long service milestones.
Provided regular communications to staff
regarding COVID-19.
Facilitated the coordination of COVID PPE for staff.
Facilitated 15 job competitions with 551
applications received.
Resolved four grievances; grievance (2019)
referred to arbitration resolved and withdrawn.
Participated in labour management meetings to
discuss workplace issues.
Conducted internal investigations into workplace
issues.
Evaluated three job reclassifications requests.
Created/updated job descriptions.
Updated HR policies and created new processes.
Conducted training for supervisors and
management.
Worked with consultant to enhance employee
benefits.
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HUMAN RESOURCES
OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY (OHS)
What We Do
The City is committed to providing a safe and
healthy work environment for all its employees.
Occupational Health and Safety areas of
responsibility include administering the OHS
program, policies, procedures; staff training;
ensuring compliance with the Workers
Compensation Act and Occupational Health and
Safety Regulation; managing first aid, workplace
injuries and WorkSafeBC claims; disability
management including return to work/stay at work
initiatives; and overseeing the operation of the joint
health and safety committee. These functions
benefit the organization by increasing morale and
productivity while reducing WSBC insurance costs
(experience rating), lost time and sick time benefit
usage.
Through active participation and cooperation of
management, supervisors, workers and the joint
health and safety committee, the City continues to
promote healthy and safe working conditions as
integral parts of its operation. While there was an
increase in WorkSafeBC premium rates for the local
government industry in 2021, the City received a
21% discount due to the ongoing safety efforts of
City staff in 2020.

ACHIEVEMENTS
•
•

•

•
•

•

•

•

Developed COVID-19 safety plan including
implementing physical barriers, disinfection,
sanitization and other safety protocols.
Received 11 WorkSafeBC inspection reports
ensuring compliance with regulation related to
COVID-19, bullying and harassment and chlorine
gas process.
Joint Health and Safety Committee:
o Hosted monthly meetings and performed
annual evaluation as per OHS regulation.
o Completed 13 worksite inspections.
o Completed mandatory new member training
through WorkSafeBC and Employer Advisers
Office.
First aid and incident investigations:
o Conducted 6 incident investigations.
o Attended to 29 reported injuries.
Disability management:
o Administered three (WSBC) return-to-work/
accommodations.
o Administered one new and supported three
ongoing long-term disability claims.
OHS program review and maintenance:
o Updated the City’s OHS Program to align with
current regulation and changes to the Workers
Compensation Act.
Training:
o Conducted 15 new employee safety
orientations.
o Conducted training for new safety procedures
and programs.
Wellness initiatives:
o Hosted a flu shot program.
o Hosted hearing tests.
o Conducted respirator fit tests.
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OPERATIONS

What We Do
The operations department contains six sections defined by area of responsibility: parks, buildings and facilities,
roads and drainage, fleet services, utilities (water and sewer) and the Arrowsmith Dam and Englishman River
water treatment plant. The operations department is responsible for the operation and maintenance of City
parks and trails, municipally-owned properties, roadways (including sidewalks, street lighting and traffic signals),
drainage collection and conveyance systems, the water distribution system, the sewerage collection system and
snow and ice control.
As well as the provision of daily operations and maintenance for the overall infrastructure of City assets, the
operations department received about 1,620 individual requests form Parksville residents and businesses for
additional service.
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OPERATIONS

BUILDINGS AND FACILITIES
What We Do
The buildings and facilities section, consisting of two staff members, is responsible for the maintenance of City
buildings and facilities. This includes the operations main building, fleet operation facility, Englishman River
Water Service treatment plant, Parksville Community Centre, Parksville Civic and Technology Centre and Shelly
Road Centre.
Some of the primary responsibilities include minor building construction, electrical and plumbing repair, general
furniture and cabinet installations and security system installation maintenance. Facility staff also provide
assistance or advice to other City facilities within the sections under separate control. Facility staff liaise with
building occupants to make sure individual maintenance needs are met and coordinate the replacement and
renewal of facility assets as required.

ACHIEVEMENTS
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Oversaw renovations at the Vancouver Island Library
including new reception area, paint and flooring.
Installed new flooring at PCTC.
Installed new COVID safety protocols at multiple
facilities.
Installed three new HVAC units at operations.
Monthly inspections and systems checks completed.
Shelly Road Center exterior LED lighting upgrades
completed.
All park washrooms painted.
General maintenance, tests and requests for service
completed.
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OPERATIONS

FLEET SERVICES
What We Do
The fleet services section consists of two full-time staff who perform a variety of duties including repairs,
maintenance, custom fabrication, building maintenance and inspections within operations. The fleet group
manages and operates a mixed fleet of vehicles, heavy equipment, and an assortment of specialized work units
for the City. The fleet section works in compliance with provincial and federal safety regulations and maintains
equipment worth $4 million:
 63 insured vehicles (heavy and light duty)
 Eight pieces of snow and ice control equipment
 Over 90 pieces of small equipment
 Eight back-up generators

ACHIEVEMENTS
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Completed independent health and safety audit
which reviewed daily tasks and hazards for workers
who are conducting mechanical repairs, custom
fabrication, welding, and routine maintenance.
Replaced cylinder head gaskets at the Arrowsmith
Dam generator.
Custom fabrication completed to repair the remote
access gate leading to the Arrowsmith water supply.
Along with the finance department, completed an
equipment lifecycle replacement schedule revamp.
Three vehicle procurement tenders were completed
and awarded: parks out front John Deer mower,
utilities panel van and roads street sweeper.
Test, service and deploy all winter equipment.
Repair and maintain fire rescue equipment.
Serviced and maintained eight standby generator
units to support water, sewer and operations during
power outages.
Treated and polished 18,000 litres of diesel fuel to
prevent disposing fuel supplies and ensuring all
systems are operationally ready and available.
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OPERATIONS

PARKS
What We Do
The parks section with 13 staff members,
maintain five major parks for the public’s
enjoyment - the Parksville Community Park,
Springwood Park, Top Bridge Park, the
Parksville Wetlands and Foster Park. In total,
the parks section is ultimately responsible for
68 properties totalling 85 hectares identified as
parkland and the associated facilities and
infrastructure located within them.
Parks are an important element in the quality of
life of Parksville, providing green spaces,
playgrounds, outdoor recreation facilities,
natural spaces and managing the urban forest.
Each year in mid-May, parks staff undertake the
formidable task of planting thousands of annual
flowers. The intersection at Pym Street and
Highway 19A is the most prominent display,
encompassing about 5,500 individual plants.
Other major displays can be seen at the
Parksville Community Park and the Parksville
Civic and Technology Centre.
In addition to parks, this section also completes
maintenance on City-owned properties and
rights-of-way. This includes about 40 kilometres
of walkways and trails, 16 beach access points,
mowing and weeding the majority of the
Highway 19A corridor and City-owned property
not defined as parkland, maintaining all
landscaped traffic medians within roadways,
and hanging baskets and planters throughout
the downtown core. The parks section also
includes three certified arborists who are
responsible for managing trees within City
parks, properties, and rights-of-way.

ACHIEVEMENTS
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Arboretum Accreditation through ArbNet. Parksville is
one of only four accredited arboretums in Canada.
Planted 3,000 trees in urban forest areas.
Added 3,000+ street and park trees to tree plotter
inventory management system.
Installed drainage culverts at Coldwater side of
Parksville Wetland.
Western red cedar management removals at
Bridgewater, Foster, Shelly Creek and Springwood
Park.
Three seesaws, an expression swing and Splash Park
bench installed in Parksville Community Park.
Drainage improvements, irrigation, concrete fence,
and new picnic shelter at Foster Park.
25 Trees for 25 Years with Friends of Foster Park.
Planted 15,500 annuals and 8,500 bulbs.
Continued Coastal Invasive Species Council
knotweed/hogweed/gorse program.
Retegno Park deconstruction, grading, drainage,
irrigation, turf, and trees.
New signage for Parksville Wetlands.
Memorial Avenue tree watering, fertilizing,
maintenance, and inspections.
Shelly Creek bridge replacement and trail resurfacing.
Springwood Royals fence and mow strip completed.
Upgrades to Shelly Road Centre park.
Installation of seasonal lights.
Installed split rail fencing at Parksville Wetlands.
Hirst and Maple Glen street tree pruning.
Lions Club volunteer another 2,000 hours in the Lion’s
Ventureland Playground.

This section also manages the special events application approval process and in coordination with the Regional
District of Nanaimo, balances sports field bookings with annual planned maintenance programs and schedules.
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OPERATIONS

\

ROADS AND DRAINAGE
What We Do
The roads and drainage section consisting of nine staff is responsible for the maintenance of about 100
kilometres of paved roads and two kilometres of unpaved roads, about 60 kilometres of sidewalks, 1,200
streetlights, 70 kilometres of drainage piping, 30 kilometres of open ditches, 17 outfalls and miscellaneous
appurtenances, such as culverts.
This section manages the annual traffic signal maintenance program, annual crack sealing program, line painting
program, conducts annual sidewalk inspections, performs annual brush cutting along ditches and select rights-ofway and daily street sweeping throughout the City.
Roads and drainage staff control the City’s heavy equipment which includes two dump trucks, vac-all flush
truck/hydro excavator, backhoe, versatile tractor and a roadway sweeper truck. The section facilitates major
roadway asphalt repairs, maintains the City’s extensive drainage conveyance infrastructure, leads the City's
winter snow and ice control program, and manages the City’s comprehensive traffic sign inventory.

ACHIEVEMENTS
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Snow clearing on the road to and working on the
dam generators.
New drainage at Wolf Park.
Culvert replacements.
Repair beachfront erosion.
Leaf and street cleaning program.
Parksville Community Park rock pit drainage.
Grading of Top Ridge gravel hill.
Shoulder grading.
Pym Street sidewalk repair.
Storm pipe repair and replacement.
Catch basin cleaning.
Snow and ice response.
Completed 480 requests for service.

City of Parksville | 2020 ANNUAL REPORT | 36

OPERATIONS

UTILITIES (WATER AND SEWER)
What We Do
The utilities section, consisting of seven staff, is responsible for the operation and maintenance of the City’s
water distribution system and the sanitary sewer collection system.
The water system consists of 16 deep groundwater wells drawing from an aquifer on the south edge of the City
boundary and the Englishman River. Arrowsmith Dam releases water into the Englishman river that gets treated
at the Englishman River Water Treatment Plant then sent into the distribution system. The distribution system
consists of about 90 kilometres of mainline water pipes, four water storage reservoirs, two pump stations and
about 5,000 serviced lots. The City has 535 fire hydrants to maintain. The sanitary sewer collection system is
made up of about 77 kilometres of piping, two sewage pumping lift stations and appurtenances. The City does
not own or operate a wastewater treatment facility. The City of Parksville and surrounding area's liquid waste is
treated at the French Creek Pollution Control Centre, owned and operated by the Regional District of Nanaimo.

ACHIEVEMENTS
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

•
•
•
•

Maintained and cleaned three reservoirs.
Flushed our entire water system.
Serviced 300 fire hydrants.
Continued with the meter replacement program as
well as install development driven meters.
Installed a bypass between the high pressure and
low-pressure zones to aid in shutdowns and pump
station maintenance.
Trained in new water treatment facility processes.
Repaired several water service breaks.
Replaced two groundwater well pumps.
Painted Springwood pump station.
Started to decommission the old river pump gas
chlorine system.
Attended more that 200 water/sewer related calls.
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ARROWSMITH WATER SERVICE
ENGLISHMAN RIVER WATER SERVICE

What We Do
The Englishman River Water Service (ERWS) is a joint
venture between the City of Parksville and the Regional
District of Nanaimo for the provision of bulk water to
the residents of Parksville and the Nanoose Bay
Peninsula Water Service Area.
The Arrowsmith Water Service (AWS) is a joint venture
between the City of Parksville, Town of Qualicum
Beach and the Regional District of Nanaimo, formed to
secure bulk water supply from the Englishman River.
Refer to englishmanriverwaterservice.ca for more
information.

ACHIEVEMENTS
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Water treatment plant commissioned.
Hired operators.
Installed and commission a finished water chlorine
analyzer.
Worked through commissioning and first year of
operations in the water treatment plant.
Responded to a significant weather/river event in
October.
Adjusted, serviced, and maintained multiple pieces
of water treatment plant equipment.
Focus on safety, training, and troubleshooting.
Pumped 1.6 cubic metres of water through the
water treatment plant in 2020.
Sometimes using snowmobiles and snowshoes,
several repairs were made to the Arrowsmith water
service and dam.
Completed annual engineered inspections and
reports.
Repaired the generator head gasket.
Replaced the batteries on the dam’s SCADA system.
With an excavator, removed large fallen tree from
the spillway.
Minor roadworks completed.
Cleaned debris from valve chamber.
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PARKSVILLE VOLUNTEER
FIRE DEPARTMENT

What We Do
The Parksville Volunteer Fire Department is staffed by five paid members and up to 44 on-call volunteer
firefighters as well as a full-time administrative assistant. Firefighters are a dedicated and diverse group of highly
trained professionals, both women and men, most of whom volunteer their service.
Mission Statement:

The Parksville Volunteer Fire Department strives to protect and support
the community by providing outstanding service in the areas of fire
suppression, emergency response, member training, fire prevention,
public education and charitable community service (2014).

Departmental Values:

Integrity and service.

Vision:

Commitment to the betterment of the community through dedication
and sacrifice and through actions and behaviours which exemplify core
beliefs and values. Choose what is right over what is convenient and
comfortable.

Motto:

Pride • Courage • Passion • Teamwork

Service Area:

The Parksville Fire Protection Area is made up of the City of Parksville
and the French Creek and Parksville Local Service Areas of the Regional
District of Nanaimo.
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PARKSVILLE VOLUNTEER
FIRE DEPARTMENT

ACHIEVEMENTS
COVID-19 - the COVID-19 global pandemic
presented many challenges during 2020 regarding
member safety and mental health, fire rescue
service delivery, training, and public engagement.
The PVFD has successfully navigated the pandemic
issues by implementing a comprehensive pandemic
plan for the safety of our members and to
maintain service to the public.
Pandemic protocols include
cessation of certain activities,
additional or modified safe
work practices, and
influenza-like-illness health
assessments for members
and at incidents.
Calls for service responded to or dealt with
487 incidents equalling 2,037
person hours. Responses included
fire, medical aid, hazardous
materials, rope rescue, confined space
rescue, auto extrication, alarms, motor vehicle
incidents, burning complaints, and miscellaneous
public service.
Fire prevention - activities include public fire and
life safety education, fire and life safety inspections
of all public occupancies, fire cause determination
investigations and building plan reviews.
• 17 public education events, equalling 70 personhours and reaching 170 citizens. This is a
significant reduction and a direct request of
COVID-19 public health orders, organizational
and departmental safety protocols.
• 41 reportable fire incidents and 10 fire-cause
investigations.
• 488 fire safety inspections completed in public
occupancies.
• 12 development plan reviews completed.

Staffing - second full-time paid fire rescue
services technician onboarded in February.
Training - volunteer members are committed to
maintaining a high level of proficiency in their
field. In 2020, members completed 7,931
person hours of training over 407 training
sessions to build and maintain the
necessary skills to be effective in
their roles.
Emergency program continue to support the
local emergency program
by storing and hauling
emergency
communications trailer
and by facilitating meeting
space for the emergency
communications group.
Aid agreements – continue to
maintain close working relationships with
neighbouring fire services; Town of Qualicum
Beach, District of Lantzville and Regional District
of Nanaimo. This includes responding as per
mutual and automatic aid agreements.
Boots for Food Drive for the Salvation Army due to COVID-19, this annual event changed
significantly in 2020. We were unable to go
door-to-door for donations and unable to
accept donations at the fire hall. Alternatively,
the membership, with the support from Thrifty
Foods, Quality Foods and Save-On Foods, held a
“Boots for Food” weekend. Physically distanced
and masked firefighters setup outside each
store for two days, collecting $32,300. Craig Bay
Residents Association raised an outstanding
$40,942 and with other donations, the grand
total collected was $75,308.45.
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PARKSVILLE VOLUNTEER
FIRE DEPARTMENT

Milestone Drive-bys
The Parksville Volunteer Fire Department offered to help residents
celebrate a milestone event in a special way with drive-bys for
residents in the Parksville Fire Protection Area. Birthday drive-bys were
offered for ages 12 and under or 75 and older as well as special
milestone celebrations. Firefighters volunteered their time for 177
drive-by events in 2020 which included birthdays for residents between
the ages of two and 104, wedding anniversaries and special events such
as a drive-by to celebrate Dr Molly’s graduation, a new veterinarian,
completing eight years of schooling.

CHALLENGES
COVID-19 - to meet the requirements of safety for
members and public health, the social aspect of the
fire department has all but come to a stand still. For
many volunteer on-call members, this aspect of the
fire service offers stress relief. There is an obvious
strain on the mental health of our membership due
to the significant reduction in social contact both in
home lives and at the fire station.
Recruitment of volunteer on-call members - lack of
affordable housing, lack of well-paid full-time
employment opportunities, combined with an older
demographic and the changing nature of
volunteerism are all significant impediments to
attracting members.

Retention of volunteer on-call members (our most
important resource) - increases in the volume of
calls for service and training requirements, put
additional time pressures on volunteer on-call
members. Availability and affordability of housing,
coupled with few well-paid full-time job
opportunities, create a strain on the ability to
members to commit the required time or keep
people in the fire protection area. The ability of
members to maintain healthy balances between
home, work and the fire rescue service continues to
become incrementally more and more challenging
as the community continues to grow.
Facility - space, configuration and amenity
pressures also continue to pose significant
challenges. This is becoming a more urgent situation
as more staff are hired and specific administration,
fitness, storage and training areas are at or beyond
capacity or poorly configured.
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Community Connections
In-person attendance at meetings as well as many in-person events were not allowed in 2020 due to the COVID19 pandemic and public health orders. Here are some of the many ways the City can inform, consult and involve
Parksville residents when we are once again able to engage post pandemic with our residents. We welcome your
feedback at 250 954-3073 or communications@parksville.ca.
Advertisements - regularly publishes public notices
and information important to residents.
City Hall - an opportunity to phone or come to City
hall with questions or concerns.
City News Page - It's Your City is published monthly
in the PQB News and available on website.
City Enewsletter - distributed monthly by email and
available on website.
Coffee with the Mayor - the Mayor hosted sessions
are an effective way for residents to chat informally
with the Mayor.
Council Meetings - meeting schedules, agendas,
reports and minutes are available on the website.
Council Meeting Highlights - summary of Council
decisions is posted to the website the day after the
meeting.
Delegations - citizens may appear as a delegation at
Council meetings.
Feedback Form - we encourage comments and
suggestions on City-related topics.
Let’s Talk Parksville - an online engagement
platform with a selection of tools to engage the
public on City projects and provide opportunities for
comment and ideas.

Public Hearings, Open Houses and Workshops opportunities to be part of planning for City
initiatives. As soon as it is safe to do, these events
will resume.
Public Input at Council Meetings - may be provided
prior to the start of a meeting; the Mayor may ask
for questions or comments from the public related
to subjects on the agenda.
Request for Service - an online tool to easily report
non-emergency operational issues.

Mailings - to residents and businesses three times
each year.

Social Media - the City actively engages with the
community on social media platforms such as
Facebook, Twitter, Instagram and Pinterest.

Meetings with the Mayor - residents are welcome
to meet with the Mayor at City hall.

Surveys - when required, surveys are conducted to
obtain feedback about programs and initiatives.

News Releases - distributed ongoing and archived
on the website. Residents will also find background
information about projects or issues.

Websites - Up-to-date information as well as
publications, reports and more on Parksville.ca,
EmergencyOceanside.ca and Parksvillefirerescue.ca.
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COVID-19 - Adapting to a New Normal
The COVID-19 global pandemic had significant impacts for our community and presented challenges for City services in
2020. As the year progressed, we adapted to the new normal by changing how we do things. With the declaration of the
World Health Organization global pandemic in March, an Emergency Operations Centre was activated through
Emergency Management Oceanside in partnership with the City of Parksville and Town of Qualicum Beach. The EOC
activation remains in effect allowing us to respond to the pandemic.
Similar to other municipalities, facilities closed, and in-person meetings were
no longer allowed. The City focused on supporting community safety for our
staff and residents as well as the continuity of crucial services to maintain
infrastructure and preserve community assets, all with minimal disruption to
the community.
In 2020, our staff safely provided services to the public by creating safe work
procedures including PPE and new cleaning protocols. To reduce the number
of people in the office, some staff worked from home and masks became a
way of life in the workplace. In-person meetings were conducted virtually;
Council meetings and public hearings were conducted via Zoom, and
appointments with staff were held virtually.
In June, we announced plans to restore amenities and services closed in
March due to the pandemic; a gradual multi-step approach to reopening
services while continuing to maintain and protect public safety. The
finance department reopened with limited services. Council approved late
payment penalty dates for 2020 property taxes; extended to 5% on
October 1 and 5% on December 1. To assist business, Council approved a
motion to allow restaurant seating on sidewalks and parking lots to help
with spacing to meet the physical distancing requirements due to the
COVID-19 pandemic. Through releases, the media, bulletin, and websites,
we communicated frequently with residents to provide service
information about the evolving pandemic situation.
The Parksville Fire Department successfully navigated pandemic issues by
implementing a comprehensive pandemic plan for the safety of members
and to maintain service to the public. Members volunteered their time to
create memories for residents celebrating milestone events. Drive-bys
were for ages 12 and under or 75 and older along with anniversaries and
special celebrations.
Throughout 2020 and as we navigate 2021, reopening will align with the Province of BC’s restart program.
Our sincere thank you to our residents who went above and beyond to keep us all safe
and help to limit the spread of COVID-19 in our community.
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Our 75th Birthday 1945-2020
Planning for a birthday party that never happened.
In June 2019, the Council announced 2020 would be the year to celebrate the City’s 75th birthday and a 75th birthday
select committee would help plan events to celebrate this special milestone. Committee members were Rhonda
McLellan, June Beaman, Jennifer Bate, Patrick Jiggins and Councillors Marilyn Wilson and Teresa Patterson. A local event
management company was contracted to work with the committee on planning and logistics and our residents were
encouraged to share stories of their time in Parksville or their ideas for how to celebrate Parksville’s 75th birthday.
To kickoff 2020, banners were installed on the Parksville Civic and Technology
Centre and plans were well underway for signature events during the summer:
June 19, the day in 1945, Parksville was incorporated as a village. The event hosted
by the committee would include birthday cake, music, special guests and the fire
department popup water park.
July 4 was set to be a beach party in the Parksville Community Park with such
activities as amateur sand sculpting competition, bocce and croquet tournaments,
entertainment and food.
August 22 was to be
the wrap up birthday
celebration with a City
hosted street festival at
the Parksville Civic and
Technology Centre with
live entertainment,
children’s bike parade,
community vendors,
food trucks and more.
Unfortunately, due to
the global pandemic
and provincial health
orders restricting public
gatherings, events were
postponed until 2021
and then cancelled
indefinitely due to the
continuing COVID-19
situation. When we can
once again celebrate
safely together, we will
recognize our 75th, 76th, 77th, and so on.
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Veterans Remembrance Banners
From October 13 through November 30, 2020, commemorative banners to honour local veterans who gave their lives in
World War I and World War II, were displayed along Highway 19A between McMillan and McVickers Streets. The Council
approved banner program honours veterans whose names are listed on the Parksville Cenotaph; sixty names from the
two world wars. With extensive research, images and personal information was found on 31 veterans.
Project researcher, Valda Stefani, established relationships with
military museums, other researchers and conducted interviews to
put as many faces to names as possible. Many of the local
enlisted young men, especially from World War I, were recent
arrivals from such places as the United Kingdom and Australia and
too young to have started families, adding to the challenge of
finding information about them.
We received images from archives in England, Ireland, Parksville
Museum and Archives, UBC Archives, Times Colonist, personal
collections and other sources. Our residents generously shared
personal stories and valuable information about family members,
not otherwise obtainable through archives or museums.
Research continues and as the program evolves, we will share the
many photographs and stories about the veterans on the City’s
website. Each year, the colourful banners will be installed on
lamp standards along the Island Highway as a remembrance to
lives lost.
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Permissive Tax Exemption Statement

Statement of 2020 Property Tax Exemptions - Bylaw No. 1557
Value of Permissive
Exemption
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

CIVIC ADDRESS

ORGANIZATION

TOTAL TAXES

MUNICIPAL
PORTION

PLACE OF WORSHIP
Lot 1, Plan 34131

795 Island Hwy West

Lot A, Plan 41355

550 Pym Street

Lot 4, Plan 2467

407 Wembley Road

Lot 1, Plan 34272

345 Pym Street

Lots 4 & 5, Plan 5663

170 Hirst Avenue West

Lots 6-7, Plan 5663
except Plan 36767

187 Alberni Hwy

Our Saviour Lutheran Church
Trustees Parksville Baptist
Church
Anglican Synod Diocese
of BC
Trustees of the Congregation of
Knox United Church
Mt. Arrowsmith RCL Branch 49
Leased to Arbutus Grove
Reformed Church
Governing Council
Salvation Army

4,843.17

2,691.78

21,021.78

11,683.67

14,054.06

8,644.52

16,173.59

8,989.10

7,830.14

4,351.91

9,548.28

5,306.83

36,546.25

19,129.14

24,045.08

12,585.74

38,837.93

20,328.66

2,456.53

1,252.89

6,251.44

3,188.38

7,188.82

3,995.47

8,969.59

4,792.17

2,687.77

1,406.84

28,813.28

15,081.53

SOCIETIES FOR SENIORS AND DISADVANTAGED
Lot A, Plan VIP74182

188 Hirst Avenue West

Lot 1, Plan 45926

245 Hirst Avenue West

Lots 1-4, Plan 26728

249 Hirst Street

Lot 41, Plan 6836

136 Hirst Ave East

Lot 6, Plan 5797

312 Hirst Avenue West

Lot 17, Plan 6836

144 Middleton Ave

Lot A, DL 14,
Plan 4095

146 Hirst Avenue West

Part of Lot 1, DL 89,
Plan VIP13939

107-109 Hirst Avenue
West

Part of Lot 1, DL 89, ,
Plan 43366

109-192 Island Highway
West

District 69 Society of Organized
Services
District 69 Society of Organized
Services
Inclusion Parksville Society
Forward House Community
Society
Kingsley Low-Rental
Housing Society
Parksville Seniors' Activity and
Drop In Centre Society
Mt. Arrowsmith (Pacific No. 49)
Branch Royal Canadian
The Salvation Army
(Mt. Arrowsmith Community
Services)
The Salvation Army
(Mt. Arrowsmith Community
Services)
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Statement of 2020 Property Tax Exemptions - Bylaw No. 1557
Value of Permissive
Exemption
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

CIVIC ADDRESS

ORGANIZATION

TOTAL TAXES

MUNICIPAL
PORTION

RAIL / TRACK PROPERTY
Lot A, DL 16,
Plan VIP65788
Lot A, Block 1495,
Plan VIP64448
Lot A, DL 40,
Plan VIP59337
Lot 1, Block 1494,
Plan VIP64444
Lot A, Block 1495,
Plan VIP64448

Bisect Ermineskin ALR
Land
That Part in the City of
Parksville
Herring Gull portion to
Highway Scale
Herring Gull behind
Works Yard
600 Alberni Highway

Island Corridor Foundation

3,953.86

2,057.06

Island Corridor Foundation

585.29

321.51

Island Corridor Foundation

3,062.17

1,593.15

Island Corridor Foundation

7,259.62

3,776.93

Island Corridor Foundation

2,005.20

1,043.24

PUBLIC PARK / RECREATION / ATHLETIC / YOUTH
Lot 16, Plan 33339
Parcel B, Except Plan
29279 And VIP52583,
PCL B DD349031
Lot 1,
Plan VIP71491
Lot 1, Block 564,
Plan 22048

116-425 Stanford Ave

Oceanside Cadet Youth Society

829.23

527.52

193 Island Hwy East

Regional District of Nanaimo
(Parksville Curling Club Society)

5,130.63

2,851.55

149 Stanford Ave East

Parksville Lawn Bowling Club

7,275.07

4,041.51

1245 Chattell Road

Parksville-Qualicum Fish and
Game Association

4,273.10

2,713.39

Arrowsmith Rest Home Society

4,766.03

2,430.78

Arrowsmith Rest Home Society

57,895.81

29,528.22

Parksville Lions Senior Citizens
Housing Society

4,246.96

2,166.05

SENIORS HOUSING
Lot A, DL 14,
Plan 2536
Lot B, DL 14, Plan 2536
Lots 29-30,
Plan 1565

266A Moilliet Street
South
266B Moilliet Street
South
205 Jensen Ave East

ARTS AND CULTURAL FACILITIES
Lot 8, Plan 33339
except Plan VIP60816

1245 Island Hwy East

Parksville and District Historical
Society

13,105.35

8,067.06

Lot A, Plan 49747

133 McMillan Street

Oceanside Community Arts
Council and Inclusion Parksville
Society

15,039.91

7,872.23

87,576.11

48,673.82

435,774

235,738

ENVIRONMENT
Lot 1, Plan VIP5560

200 Corfield Street

The Nature Trust of BC
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Permissive Tax Exemption Services
Arrowsmith Rest Home Society - Complex senior care facility - Arrowsmith Lodge (75 bed complex care facility) and
Cokely Manor (30 suite assisted living building and adult day program). The exemption allows the Society to continue to
provide a full range of services to both the elders at Arrowsmith Lodge and the tenants at Cokely Manor. Arrowsmith
Lodge provides 24 hour nursing care to 75 elderly residents when they are no longer able to live in their homes and
require care that is less than that provided by an acute care facility. Also provides a 15 bed dementia unit for those that
suffer from dementia. Cokely Manor provides a setting for those (mainly seniors) who require assistance in living their
daily lives. These are elders who cannot function at home but are still able to look after themselves to a certain extent. As
of January 1, 2017, Arrowsmith has also entered a contract with the Society of Organized Services to provide meals from
the Meals on Wheels Program.
District 69 Society of Organized Services - SOS has been providing programs and services that meet the needs and
improve the lives of local residents since 1968. Revenue generated at the Thrift Shop funds the programs and services
offered at SOS. All programs are free or subsidized, and are offered to children, youth, families, adults, and seniors. These
include programs that support mental health and wellness, independence and self-sufficiency while also inspiring
community spirit, new connections and solidarity. Program examples include Emergency Assistance and Advocacy,
Community Resource Referral Service, Medical Appointment Transportation Service, Caring for Community at Christmas,
Meals-on-Wheels, Personal Development and Counselling Referral, Homeless Prevention Program, Income Tax Returns
and Pension applications. Child Youth and Family programs include TIC TAC (time in comfort for tots and caregivers), Early
Learners On the Move, Kids Movement: Play, Express & Grow, School Night Out, Family Night, Teen Night, Youth Open
Space, GradWear, After School Education Assistance, Recreation Assistance for Children and Youth, and more. Seniors
programs include Oceanside Better at Home, Seniors Connecting and Seniors Advocacy Services. The Thrift Shop offers
local people, especially low-income individuals, an alternative resource when purchasing household items, clothes, toys
and books. The donations are generated locally, and the funds raised go back into community programs and services
offered to local residents.
Forward House Community Society - Forward House provides day programs for adult clients experiencing mental
health/addiction issues in District 69. They offer education programs, recreation and expressive therapies along with lowcost lunches and dinners. Forward House provides a strengths-based culture that focuses on individuals' talents and
abilities. They create a safe, friendly and family-like environment where clients are empowered to develop and maintain
independence and autonomy by being given tools to enhance their skills.
The ACE program encourages clients to give back to the community through volunteering. Forward House provides a
small monthly stipend to help cover costs. The lawn service program consists of five client-employees who provide lowcost lawn care to individuals, businesses and organizations in the community.
Forward House provides resources and supports for caregivers through Families Forward Program and conducts
community presentations on mental health, stigma and compassionate communication. They also host many practicum
students each year and participate in many community committees such as the Oceanside Task Force on Homelessness,
Oceanside Health and Wellness Network, harm reduction committee, CCAT and Housing Outreach Support Team.
Inclusion Parksville Society - Inclusion Parksville provides support services to people with developmental disabilities and
their families. They have provided direct service to approximately 75 adults and their families within District 69 since
1959. Their vision is to be a community where all people with disabilities have equal opportunities to lead active, fulfilling
lives and are recognized as contributing members of the community. Services are provided through seven (7) programs
consisting of two (2) day programs, a Self Help Skills program, a Semi-Independent Living program, Personal Supports
Initiatives Program and an employment program.
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At 133 McMillan (which is jointly owned with the OCAC) they operate the employment program which provides
vocational opportunities for participants in the community with an emphasis on real work for real pay. Currently this
program supports 13 participants engaged in different stages of employment. Inclusion Parksville has established
partnerships with numerous businesses to provide these services.
At 249 Hirst Avenue they operate the administration office as well as the Oceanside Day Program which provides support
to up to 28 participants. Many of these individuals have high medical needs, are elderly and require a quiet, structured
environment. Programs offered at this location are the Self Help Skills program, the Semi-Independent Living program,
Personal Service program and the Discovery day program. The Self Help Skills program provides support to ten (10)
participants on an individualized or small group basis. The Semi-Independent Living program provides support to ten (10)
individuals who live in their own apartments or homes; the focus of the program is to teach and support life skill
development in order to facilitate increased independence for the participants involved. The Personal Service program is
a 1-1 program where the individuals have high levels of physical, emotional and mental health needs which cannot be
met in the group setting. The Discovery Day program operates with 15 fulltime slots targeting young adults. The main
focus of this program is employment, applied skills and recreation.
Inclusion Parksville is an integral part of the community and partners with numerous organizations and businesses in
Parksville to deliver services, such as newspaper delivery contract with the PQB News and litter picking contract with
Parksville Downtown Business Association.
Island Corridor Foundation - Maintains the continuity of the Island Corridor as a contiguous special use connection for all
communities, while respecting and supporting First Nations interests and traditional land and uses. The Foundation
contributes to safe and environmentally sound passenger and freight rail services along the railroad; encourages flexible
infrastructure along the corridor which will encourage a wide range of economic and trade activity for the benefit of all
communities. They preserve archaeological resources, historic landmarks, structures, artifacts and historic routes as well
they create trails, parks, gardens, greenways and other public areas for use by the public.
Kingsley Low Rental Housing Society - This society operates affordable housing for seniors in the City of Parksville in
partnership with BC Housing. Tenants pay rent based on 30 percent of their income or at a low end market rent set by
CMHC. Any surplus generated must be placed in a maintenance reserve fund or returned to BC Housing. Rent would have
to be raised if a tax exemption is not provided
(The) Nature Trust of British Columbia - This property is part of a 25 hectare complex of conservation lands managed for
habitat protection and open space as part of the Parksville/Qualicum Beach Wildlife Management Area. This specific
property provides public access to the foreshore area for both Parksville residents and area visitors/tourists.
Oceanside Cadet Youth Society - Premises used as the headquarters for the local Sea Cadets, Navy League Cadets and
the Navy League of Canada members. The building is used to house supplies and equipment, different fundraising
activities and training centres as well as administrative offices.
Oceanside Community Arts Council - The Oceanside Community Arts Council (OCAC)'s mission is to promote the creative
arts in Oceanside through collaboration, communication and celebration. The McMillan Arts Centre is an important
community hub through which this is achieved and provides a vibrant, inclusive and accessible environment to
experience the creative climate of the community. It is a collective of artistic experience and expression. Residents and
visitors are both able to enjoy and appreciate art and music created by others through exhibitions and concerts and to
participate in the development and dissemination of their own creative contributions through educational opportunities
and space to create.
The OCAC averages over 200 members annually (and growing), with a volunteer Board of 11 individuals from diverse arts,
professional and business careers. The OCAC owns the upper half of the MAC and works in partnership with the MAC's
Executive Director and staff to provide a venue for visual and performing arts programs, presentations and exhibitions.
The MAC currently has 50 volunteers who support arts and music activities, coordinate events and exhibitions and
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perform administrative functions for the building. The OCAC through the MAC coordinates and facilitates many arts and
cultural activities including:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Three separate gallery spaces open for public viewing that are filled year-round with the artistic works of artist and
art groups including painting, pottery, sculpture and jewelry, etc.;
Studio space for community arts groups at a reasonable fee for plays and recitals and rehearsal space as well as
hosting special events;
Workshops and classes for adults, seniors, youth and children through the MAC School for the Creative Arts,
including summer classes, visiting artists' workshops and educational programs for all ages.
Drop-in artists in residence program for local artists of varied mediums;
A gift shop for local artists to retail their work;
A box office for information, ticket sales and subscription purchases for arts and culture events held at other
community venues as well as the MAC Performing Arts Series which features jazz, folk and adult storytelling
concerts.

Our Saviour Lutheran Church - Our Saviour Lutheran Church allows other Christian groups to use the facility at little or no
rent. Three current user groups have been meeting regularly for many years. Other community groups have used the
facility for functions periodically. Facilities have been used for wedding and funeral services for members as well as
outside requests. The Church provides a place of Christian worship for anyone in the Oceanside area that wishes to
attend. Members support a number of community support group such as the Salvation Army, SOS and Manna Homeless
Society.
Parksville and District Historical Society - The Society operates the Parksville Museum & Archives, the museum's primary
mandate is to collect, preserve and exhibit artifacts and archival material that is historically important to the City of
Parksville and the rest of District 69. In addition, the Society maintains eight heritage buildings that are central to the
history and identity of the local area. All the buildings were rescued from imminent destruction and moved to Craig
Heritage Park over the last 40 years and are now used to demonstrate the lives and experiences of early inhabitants of
this area. The Society operates from a central building that houses the remainder of the museum holdings, which
includes a large collection of unique archival material and photographs that provide valuable insights into the early
identity of our community. The extensive archival holdings offer researchers, family historians and writers a wealth of
data that serves to flesh out many aspects of early local life.
Every summer the museum employs four or five local university students who are integral to the running of programming
of events that contributes to the City's dynamic summer holiday reputation. The society's primary event is the first
Parksville Museum Farmers Market which was created to provide a unique space for the community to enjoy fresh,
locally produced food and to support local farmers and sustainable food production and is now in its third year of
operation. Additionally, the market was created to introduce the museum to a wider audience and promote the
importance of local heritage. Through these markets, the Society has succeeded on all counts – market vendors routinely
sell out of their products, the society experiences an average of 750 visitors per market and the museum attendance in
2015 exceeded 12,000 visitors between May and September.
This year the society started an Urban Farm School which will run year round teaching courses on food-farming ranging
from basic lessons to master classes. The society has had a full complement of students attending the classes and
anticipates an increase in interest. The society also started a traditional crafters-in-residence program which has local
artisans who practice traditional crafts demonstrating on the grounds. As an extension of this program, the society will be
starting a blacksmith club and running workshops and demonstrations from the newly built blacksmith shop.
The permissive taxation exemption allows the society to continue working toward its goal of fiscal independence and
delivery of quality programming to visitors, thus enabling the society to share the district's fascinating and diverse history
with locals and visitors alike.
Parksville Fellowship Baptist Church - Parksville Fellowship Baptist Church has been serving Parksville and Oceanside
since 1951. The church provides significant and tangible resources to the community. Every year the congregation raises
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approximately $10,000 of benevolent funds for direct disbursal to local families and individuals in need. The church
provides food to those in need and free clothing through the "Clothes Closet", serving approximately 200
individuals/families through these programs. For 22 years, the church made donations to the Society of Organized
Services and Salvation Army through funds raised by the Bethlehem Walk; these donations totaled over $248,000. In
2016, since the church did not have the Bethlehem Walk, a donation was made to the Island Crisis Care Society to fund
the extreme weather shelter for one week. To assist families in the community, the church provides a day camp on many
of the professional development days when school is not in session. This gives parents a safe, fun and low-cost
alternative child care on these days. A similar day camp is also offered for one week of the summer.
Premises and facilities are also available at no cost or low cost to other organizations on a regular or repeat basis. These
organizations include Narcotics Anonymous; Alzheimer's Society; Rotarians; Autism Society of BC Support Group;
municipal, provincial and federal government election polling stations; and emergency services response centre.
Parksville Lawn Bowling Club - The Parksville Lawn Bowling Club (PLBC) was formed 22 years ago. The club promotes the
sport of lawn bowling in Parksville and area and provides a venue for this activity. Currently the club has about 225
members. PLBC is the fourth largest lawn bowling club in BC.
Lawn bowling is a challenging yet accessible sport for most people. It attracts people of all ages (from 5 to 90+years in
PLBC.) Due to Parksville demographics, there are many seniors among club members. PLBC offers residents a
sport/recreational alternative that is fun, challenging, social, healthy and affordable. The club strives to keep membership
fees affordable for its many senior members, many of whom live on limited fixed incomes. For many seniors, lawn
bowling offers a chance to get out, meet new people and stay active. These things strengthen the people and community
of Parksville.
PLBC also enhances the profile and reputation of Parksville and adds to its economy. PLBC has a strong provincial and
national reputation. It attracts visitors and players from across Canada for its various events. These people enjoy the
sport but also spend money in local hotels, restaurants and retailers.
Club provides members with physical activity and social interaction. All ages can benefit but particularly seniors; over 90%
of membership is seniors who participate in events from friendly to challenging leagues and tournaments. Events are also
attended by other lawn bowling clubs. Club offers range of social events both to members and non-members.
Participation and volunteerism by members is their lifeline to community. Outdoor lawn bowling available seven days a
week in summer months (weather permitting) and clubhouse is available for indoor activities like crib and bridge games
during the winter months. Special Olympics Bocce Team and Stanford Place use the facility at no cost. Annual fundraising
events support the club; this year club purchased an AED and club members paid for CPR training to use AED. Also held
are fundraising events where the donations are given to the Salvation Army Food Bank, Hospice Society, War Amps
programs and cancer patient care within the community.
Parksville Lions Housing Society - This society operates affordable housing for seniors and families in the City of Parksville
in partnership with BC Housing. Tenants pay rent based on 30 percent of their income or at a low end market rent set by
CMHC. Any surplus generated must be placed in a maintenance reserve fund or returned to BC Housing. Rent would have
to be raised if a tax exemption is not provided.
Parksville Pastoral Charge (Knox United Church) - Knox Church offers community programs, financial contributions to
community groups and individuals and free or minimal cost recovery use of the building/facilities. Based on a survey of
community building rental rates, the estimated value of free use is in the neighborhood of $14,000.
Free use of the building/facilities is offered to Arrowsmith Community Justice, Rainbows (support for children in crisis
held 26 weeks in a year), Oceanside Stroke Recovery, Kairos, the Coldest Night of the Year and Parksville Council Town
Hall meetings. Organizations receiving access at special "community rates" include (but are not limited to) Alcoholics
Anonymous, Grandmothers to Grandmothers, Mosaic Youth Showcase, Overeaters Anonymous and the Parksville and
District Musical Association (PDMA). PDMA receives free use of the facilities for four concerts per year (including up to
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thirty two weeks of rehearsals) in return for allowing Knox the use of a piano. The PDMA is comprised of three groups:
the Cantando Singers, Community Choir and the Oceanside Community Band.
Church/community programs run by Knox United Church include the following:
1. Counselling services which are open to the community
2. Ministers Discretionary Fund which provides distribution of $7,500 in grocery vouchers
3. "Healing Ministry" weekly healing sessions offered by trained practitioners which are open to the public by
donation.
4. Grief support and counselling open to the community free of charge.
5. Senior care home services including visitation, pastoral care, Christmas cookie distribution and services.
6. Making and providing sandwiches twice monthly for the Manna Homeless Society.
7. Financially supporting the sponsorship of a refugee family
8. Community pastoral care
9. "In This Together" mental health support group
Knox United Church also provides regular direct support to local charities and monthly food bank donations amounting to
several tons of food stuffs each year and initiates special appeals during the year to provide cash support to local
agencies. This year donation recipients included the Society of Organized Services, Manna Homeless Society and the local
refugee sponsorship fund. The value of the cash portion of donations to local agencies was approximately $7,200. In
addition, Knox collects and donates clothing (new and experienced), books, furniture, educational materials and
household items. Although the Fall Fair is a major fundraiser, it is designed first and foremost to provide young families
and those in need with access to a broad selection of affordable items for the home and family, food services and free
entertainment.
The tax exemption assists Knox United Church in achieving their mission of reaching out as a caring supportive
organization for those in need locally and beyond.
Parksville-Qualicum Fish and Game Association - The Parksville-Qualicum Fish and Game Association benefits the
community by:
1. Providing individual and family recreation facility for public use.
2. Providing recreational programs to public and disabled sports users.
3. Providing programs and facilities used by youth, seniors and special needs groups (handicap sports persons).
4. Preserving, encouraging and fostering appreciation for outdoors and our outdoor heritage.
5. Our efforts to promote the community and foster social responsibility and stewardship.
6. Groups using facilities are members living in our community – RCMP, Cadets, Brinks, School District 69 ROAMS
(Rivers, Mountains and Oceans School outdoor education), outdoor education and other events.
7. Training and coaching facility to encourage continued skills taking youth and seniors to BC Provincial Games and
national events and even world class participation. In 2016 hosted 2 day event for BC Shoot Sports at the facility.
8. Purchase of mobile so full-time employed caretaker present.
Parksville Seniors Activity and Drop-In Centre - The Centre benefits the community by providing the following social,
recreational, physical and intellectual activities for seniors 55+: bridge, Canasta, Mexican train, fitness, yoga, Qi Gong, line
dancing, darts, bingo, shuffleboard, bag baseball, seniors choir, bus trips, theatre outings, knitting, "Out to Lunch bunch"
at local restaurants plus special events such as choir concerts and teas. The centre offers daily lunches to members. The
Centre refers seniors who need help with housing, taxes, etc. to other organizations within our community. The centre is
run entirely by volunteers and local firms are commissioned for maintenance.
Regional District of Nanaimo (Parksville Curling Club Society) - Provides a venue for recreation activities for all ages. Club
remains active in the local community as well as in sport tourism initiatives. This will be the club's 14th year of operation.
Royal Canadian Legion Branch #49 - The Legion raises funds for donations to veterans, their families and the public at
large and provides a place where veterans and other members may gather and socialize. This branch operates a loan
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cupboard from which wheelchairs, canes, crutches, walkers, transfer benches and other types of equipment used by the
elderly or infirm are available to the public by donation or at no cost; this is the only service of its kind in the area and
saves local residents the cost of expensive rental fees. Operation of the loan cupboard has saved citizens of Parksville and
the surrounding area upwards of $200,000 annually in rental fees.
All services, including the loan cupboard, meat draw, bingo and annual poppy drive, are run by volunteers. The Legion
operates a licensed lounge and rent out the hall and other amenities. All revenues used from lounge/hall are used to
meet operational overhead. All revenues from fundraising events like the poppy campaign are returned directly to the
community through charitable donations to organizations. The branch and associated Ladies Auxiliary's donations for the
past several years total $606,340.
The exemption from property taxes granted by the City went a long way in enabling the branch to continue to serve the
community in ways and with amounts that no other organization does.
Royal Canadian Legion Branch #49 - The Arbutus Grove Church is a member of the Reformed Church of America (USA
and Canada). Its purpose is to provide Christian worship, counselling, friendship and support to the congregation and
community. The church contributes to local missions such as Manna. Members help at local social service organizations
like the Salvation Army. The organization also financially and materially supports the national and international
community from time to time, including Operation Christmas child shoe boxes and Gospel for Asia – Agricultural and
Farm Support grant. The organization is also entering into areas such as winter shelter support through "Take Back the
Night" and SOS shelter ministry. Several not-for-profit groups use the building.
(The) Salvation Army, Mount Arrowsmith Community Services - The Salvation Army provides underprivileged and
economically challenged citizens in the community with an outlet through which they can purchase deeply discounted
new and used clothing and household items either through direct purchasing or referral through voucher issuance, in
which case there is no charge to the client for their goods.
(The) Salvation Army, Mount Arrowsmith Community Services - The Salvation Army offers community services and
programs to those who need support in District 69. They operate a soup kitchen four (4) days a week and a food bank
two (2) days a week for the community. They also provide counseling and addiction program referrals and organize and
donate space for a pro-bono legal program. They sponsor children to attend a summer camp and supply monthly snack
packs for school children at participating schools. The Salvation Army also provides an ID retrieving service and maintains
Healthy Babies Program and Pro Bono Legal Program.
St. Anne's and St. Edmund's Anglican Church - The building and facilities are made available to community groups on a
donation or cost-recovery basis. Groups currently using the facilities include Alcoholics Anonymous, Girl Guides, RDN
fitness programs, spiritual and educational programs and several other community committees. The church is able to
extend their Outreach Program to organizations in the community, including local care homes, the SOS, the Salvation
Army Food Bank, Manna Ministries and individuals in need. Parishioners contribute to local, national and international
associations on matters such as those affecting the health and welfare of the community, environmental issues and
major disasters. The church can offer plots in the two cemeteries in accordance with provincial regulations. They also are
able to provide historical information on local pioneers and opened St. Anne’s historic log church, built in 1894, to the
public as well as plans for public events that celebrate local pioneer history.
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Supplemental Financial Information
How is Your Property Tax Calculated?
Each year the municipality, school district, regional district, and other public
agencies need funds for the services they provide to the residents of Parksville
as determined by their respective five-year financial plans.
Municipal property tax rates are set by the City of Parksville. School property
tax rates are set by the provincial government. Other property taxes shown on
the tax notice are set by other local government bodies based on their budget
needs and include the Regional District of Nanaimo, Nanaimo Regional Hospital
District, Vancouver Island Regional Library, BC Assessment Authority and the
Municipal Finance Authority.
For 2020, the Province of BC has reduced school taxes for commercial
properties (classes 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8) by approximately 75% to provide relief to
businesses impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.
The revenue from the “City of Parksville Taxes” shown on your tax notice is
used for public services such as police and fire protection, street lighting, roads
and drainage maintenance, operation and maintenance of parks, new
infrastructure, infrastructure upgrades and other municipal services.
Assessment values for the residential class of properties, before any new
construction, increased on average by 2% in 2020 from 2019. Properties with
an assessment increase of more than 2% will see an increase in the municipal
portion of their taxes higher than the 3% increase approved by Council, and
properties with an assessment value that decreased, or increased less than the
2% average, will have a lower tax increase or possibly a tax decrease.

Financial documents including Statements of Financial Information, may be
viewed at Quicklinks/Financial Reports

City of Parksville | 2020 ANNUAL REPORT | 56

2020-2024 Final Financial Plan
Objectives and Policies for Revenue Sources, Tax Classes,
and Permissive Tax Exemptions
Section 165(3.1) of the Community Charter requires Council establish objectives and policies relating to each of the
following:
• The proportion of total revenue that is proposed to come from funding sources as defined in 165(7) of the
Community Charter (property taxes, parcel taxes, fees, borrowing and other).
• The distribution of property taxes among the property classes.
• The use of permissive tax exemptions.

FUNDING SOURCES
REVENUE SOURCE

Property taxes (municipal share)
Parcel taxes
User fees and charges
Other sources
Proceeds from Borrowing

2020
Proportion of Total
Budgeted

2019
Proportion of Total
Budgeted

54.23%
0.25%
26.87%
18.65%
0.00%

51.09%
0.26%
27.37%
15.47%
5.80%
100%

100%

Council currently does not have a specific policy surrounding the proportion of total revenue to come from each
funding source. This is because some of the funding sources are beyond Council's control and large fluctuations can
arise between the categories depending on funding used for various capital projects (such as government grants
available, DCC reserves, and borrowing). However, Council does have individual policies, procedures or objectives
relating to some of the funding sources:
Property taxes
Property taxes are the main source of revenue for the City and the main revenue source that is entirely within the
control of the City council. The annual property tax revenues are determined based on the annual Council approved
tax increases. The property tax increase is determined in either of two ways:
1. Through the annual budget process, where, after all other sources of revenue have been determined, the
tax increase is set to ensure adequate resources for budgeted expenditures and reserves, or
2. Council sets a rate increase based on the current economic conditions and what they think the taxpayer can
afford and then sets budgeted expenditures within those resource limits.
Parcel taxes
Parcel taxes are taxes levied on parcels of land without reference to the value of the land. Parcel taxes will be used
when Council determines that they are more appropriate than the assessment-based property taxes.
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User fees and charges
User fees are charges that the City levies for certain city services such as water, sewer, and garbage services,
building inspections and business licenses. These fees are set so that the fee will pay for the goods and service
required to provide services supplied without contributions from the property taxpayer. Council's policy relating to
the water, sewer, and solid waste user fees is that the user fees along with parcel taxes and other sources of
funding will cover the expenditures of each of those areas with the exception of the Sewage Treatment Plant costs
where 80% of the costs are funded by the general taxpayers.
Section 165(3.1) of the Community Charter requires Council to establish objectives and policies relating to each of the
following:
Other sources
These revenues include interest income, grants, DCC reserve withdrawals, developer contributions and other
miscellaneous funding. These revenues are very unpredictable, can vary significantly from year to year and are used
whenever they are available. Council has little control over these revenues and the policy is to use grants whenever they
are available to fund capital projects, and to use the DCC reserves to fund eligible capital projects in accordance with the
approved DCC capital expenditure program.
Proceeds from borrowing
Borrowing is minimized when possible and only used where an essential capital project will not go ahead unless debt
funds are acquired. Borrowing can either be long term (over 5 years) or short term (5 years or less). Long term borrowing
will only be used where the capital project will provide a long term benefit to the taxpayer as the assent of the electorate
is required for the use of long term debt, so the use of this source of funding is not entirely within the control of Council.
Short term borrowing is limited by provincial legislation and is only used for an essential smaller capital project that will
not go ahead without borrowing due to insufficient reserves.

DISTRIBUTION OF PROPERTY TAXES AMONG PROPERTY CLASSES
The tax collected is a factor of the amount of property assessments in a class (as determined by BC Assessment Authority)
and the tax rate set by Council. The City has two significant classes of assessments (residential and business) and no
policy is set as to what percentage of revenues will come from each class. Council's procedure is to apply tax increases
(on a percentage basis) so that the total revenue of each tax class grows from the prior year by the approved tax increase
(before the effects of new construction are added in). The proportionate relationships among the classes will vary from
year to year depending on how much new construction has occurred within a particular class, so maintaining the relative
percentages between classes is not considered a priority.

USE OF PERMISSIVE TAX EXEMPTIONS
Objective
Provide tax relief to non-profit, charitable/philanthropic, athletic, service club, care facility, or licensed private hospital
that further Council's goals of enhancing quality of life and delivering services economically.
Policies
Council policy is to review the permissive tax exemption requests each year before providing the exemption. City Policy
No. 6.15 defines the properties eligible for permissive taxation exemption. Starting in 2014 the total amount of the
exemptions granted was not to exceed the greater of $225,000 or 1.67% of the City's property tax requisition. Properties
relating to public park, recreation, athletic, and youth activities are eligible for an exemption only up to 50% of the
properties assessed value. A maximum 50% exemption also applies to properties that are ecologically significant if public
access is not allowed. All other eligible properties can receive up to a 100% exemption provided the total exemption does
not exceed the greater of $225,000 or 1.67% of the property tax requisition. If the calculated total exemption exceeds
$225,000 then all exemptions will be prorated equally until the exemption is reduced to the greater of $225,000 or 1.67%
of the property tax requisition. Council has a five-year revitalization tax exemption bylaw in place for the downtown core.
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CITY OF PARKSVILLE
MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of The City of Parksville (the "City")
are the responsibility of the City's management and have been prepared in compliance with
legislation, and in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards for local
governments established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada. A summary of the significant accounting policies are described in
Note 1 to the financial statements. The preparation of financial statements necessarily involves
the use of estimates based on management's judgment, particularly when transactions
affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with certainty until future periods.
The City's management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in
compliance with legislative and regulatory requirements, and reliable financial information is
available on a timely basis for preparation of the financial statements. These systems are
monitored and evaluated by management.
Council, acting through its Audit Committee, meets with management and the external
auditors two times per year to review the financial statements and discuss any significant
financial reporting or internal control matters prior to their approval of the financial
statements.
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, independent
external auditors appointed by City Council. The accompanying Independent Auditors' Report
outlines their responsibilities, the scope of their examination and their opinion on the City's
Consolidated Financial Statements.

On behalf of City of Parksville

......

G. Lucky Butterworth, BBA, CPA, CGA
Director of Finance

~ Mayor

1

KPMG LLP
St. Andrew's Square 11
800-730 View Street
Victoria BC V8W 3Y7
Canada
Telephone 250-480-3500
Fax 250-480-3539

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To Mayor and Councillors of the City of Parksville

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the City of Parksville (the Entity),
which comprise:
•

the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020;

•

the consolidated statement of operations for the year then ended;

•

the consolidated statement of change in net financial assets for the year then ended;

•

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

•

and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies;

(hereinafter referred to as the "financial statements").
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Entity as at December 31, 2020, and its
consolidated results of operations, its consolidated change in net financial assets and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the "Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section of our auditors' report.
We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

2020 KPMG LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent member firms
affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved.

@
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance
for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Entity's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity's financial reporting
process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors' report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Entity's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion . Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•

Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

•

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the group Entity to express an opinion on the financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Chartered Professional Accountants
Victoria, Canada
May 3, 2021

CITY OF PARKSVILLE

STATEMENT A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020

2019

2020
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash (Note 8)
Investments (Note 2)
Accounts receivable (Note 3)

$

5,602,757
54,150,612
3,987,958

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Prepaid expenses
Supplies inventory
Tangible capital assets (Note 9)

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (Note 10)

2,678,491
44,850,830
4,328,743

63,741,327

51 ,858 ,064

4,742,682
33,595
7,481,846
8,307,552
539,542
5,769,934

6,197,680
83,277
4,591,955
6,187,863
496,627
6,125,523

26,875,151

23,682,925

36,866,176

28,175,139

186,852
29,827
196,308,232

108,522
27,864
198,806,916

196,524,911

198,943,302

$ 233,391,087

$ 227,118,441

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 4)
Deferred revenue
Deposits and other liabilities (Note 5)
Development cost charges (Note 6, Schedule 2)
Employee benefit accrual (Note 7)
Debt (Note 8)

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS

$

Commitments, contingent liabilities and contractual rights (Note 11)

~ ( ~ -

G. LucyButterworth, CPA, CGA
Director of Finance

Mayor

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF PARKSVILLE

STATEMENT B

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
. YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

2020
Actual

2020
Budget
(Note 16)
REVENUE
Taxation (Note 12)
Water and sewer user fees
Services provided to other governments
Sale of services
Interest and actuarial earnings
Other revenue from own sources
Government transfers and grants (Note 13)
Developer cash contributions
In-kind contributions of tangible capital assets
Transfer from development cost charges (note 6)
Gain (loss) on disposal of tangible capital assets

$

1,344,350

$

15,564,312
6,856,884
739,355
1,872,328
1,076,045
180,638
4,117,209
334,800
302,255
485,259
(44,063)

$

14,866,992
7,478 ,208
714,589
1,856,850
1,125,854
237,809
1,458,645
266,560
4,137,649
1,949,034
38,107

30,065,750

31 ,485,022

34,130,297

2,950,100
5,462,400
5,198,800
908,400
4,641 ,300
715,900
3,604,480
4,179,800

2,518,674
4,735,040
4 ,599,656
780,698
4,057,789
713,410
3,992,553
3,814,556

2,526,488
4,809,043
4,736,023
956,658
3,743,079
689,841
2,760,228
3,881,103

27,661,180

25,212,376

24,102,463

2,404,570

6,272,646

10,027,834

227,118,441

227,118,441

217,090,607

$ 229,523,011

$ 233,391,087

$ 227,118,441

EXPENSES
General government services
Protective services
Transportation services
Community planning services
Parks, facilities and cultural services
Solid waste services
Water services
Sewer services

ANNUAL SURPLUS
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS AT END OF YEAR

15,566,100
7,561,300
710,500
1,642,000
565,200
192,300
2,484,000

2019
Actual

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF PARKSVILLE

STATEMENTC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

2019

2020
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATIONS
Annual surplus
Items not involving cash:
Amortization
Loss (gain) on disposal of tangible capital assets
Write-down of capital assets
In-kind contributions of tangible capital assets
Actuarial reduction to long term debt

$

6,272,646

$

10,027,834
3,953,205
(38,107)

4,938,253
44,063
72,812
(302,255)
(94,002)

(4,137,649)
(83,035)

340,785
(78,330)
(1,963)

1,803,771
(73,092)
14,909

(1,454,998)
(49,682)
2,889,891
42,915
2,119,689

37,835
14,154
(366,178)
(11,900)
1,113,727

Cash provided by operating transactions

14,739,824

12,255,474

CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS
Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Proceeds from the sale of tangible capital assets

(2,260,793)
6,604

(9,719,591)
84,162

Cash applied to capital transactions

(2,254, 189)

(9,635,429)

INVESTING TRANSACTIONS
Increase in investments

(9 ,299,782)

(5,290,772)

(261,587)

1,600,000
(2 16,600)

(261,587)

1,383,400

Changes in non-cash operating working capital :
Decrease (increase)
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Supplies inventory
Increase (decrease)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Deposits and other liabilities
Employee benefit accrual
Development cost charges

FINANCING TRANSACTIONS
Long term capital borrowing
Long term debt repayment

INCREASE IN CASH

2,924,266

(1,287,327)

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

2,678,491

3,965,818

CASH AT END OF YEAR

$

5,602,757

$

2,678,491

SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest on debt

$

213,046

$

197,236

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF PARKSVILLE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

2020
Budget
(Note 16)
ANNUAL SURPLUS
Acquisition of tangible capital assets
In-kind contributions of tangible capital assets
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Loss (gain) on disposal of tangible capital assets
Write-down of capital assets
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets

$

2,404,570
(11,959,050)

2020
Actual

$

3,917,200

(5,637,280)
Acquisition of supplies inventory
Acquisition of prepaid expenses
Consumption of supplies inventory
Use of prepaid expenses

STATEMENT D

2019
Actual

6,272,646
(2,260,793)
(302,255)
4,938,253
44,063
72,812
6,604

$ 10,027,834

8,771,330

169,854

(9,719,591)
(4,137,649)
3,953,205
(38,107)
84,162

(29,827)
(186,852)
27,864
108,522

(27,864)
(108,522)
42,773
35,430

(80,293)

(58,183)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS

(5,637,280)

8,691,037

111,671

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

28,175,139

28,175,139

28,063,468

36,866,176

$ 28,175,139

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS AT END OF YEAR

$ 22,537,859

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF PARKSVILLE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

The City of Parksville (the 'City') is a municipality in the Province of British Columbia and operates under the authority
of the Local Government Act and Community Charter of British Columbia. The City's principal activities include the
provision of services to residents of Parksville. These include protective services, engineering and public works,
parks, community planning, general government, water, sewer and solid waste.

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a)

Basis of presentation
Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recommendations of the
Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.
The consolidated statement of financial position includes all assets and liabilities of the City including its
proportionate interest in Government Partnerships, Arrowsmith Water Service Joint Venture and Englishman
River Water Service Joint Venture. lnterfund transactions and balances with government partnerships have
been eliminated.

b)

Basis of accounting
Revenues are recorded in the period in which the transactions or events occurred that gave rise to the
revenues. All revenues are recorded on an accrual basis, except when the accruals cannot be determined
with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their estimation is impracticable.
Government transfers are recognized as revenues when the transfer is authorized and any eligibility
criteria are met, except to the extent that transfer stipulations give rise to an obligation that meets the
definition of a liability. Government transfers are recognized as deferred revenue when transfer stipulations
give rise to a liability. Government transfer revenue is recognized in the consolidated statement of
operations as the stipulation liabilities are settled.
Revenue related to fees or services received in advance of the fee being earned or the service performed
is deferred and recognized when the fee is earned or service performed.
Contributions from other sources are deferred when restrictions are placed on their use by the contributor,
and are recognized as revenue when used for the specific purpose.
Expenses are recorded in the period the goods and services are acquired and a liability is incurred or
transfers are due.
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CITY OF PARKSVILLE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
c)

Investments
Investments are comprised of term deposits and short-term guaranteed investment certificates which are
backed by the Government of Canada or are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
ln:vestments are recorded at cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums or discounts. Provisions for
losses are recorded when they are considered to be other than temporary. At various times during the
term of each individual investment, market value may be less than cost. Such declines in value are considered temporary for investments with known maturity dates as they generally reverse as the investments
mature and, therefore, an adjustment to market value of these market declines is not recorded.
Investment income is reported in the period earned. When required by the funding government or related
Act, investment income earned on deferred revenue is added to the investment and forms part of the
deferred revenue balance.

d)

Non-financial assets
Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the provision of
services. They may have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are not intended for sale in the
ordinary course of operations.
Inventory
The City maintains a minimal level of parts and supplies on hand. Larger inventory items are included on
the consolidated state_ment of financial position and are recorded at cost at year end. Spare parts and
supplies are expensed when purchased.
Tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes all amounts that are directly attributable
to acquisitions, construction, development, or betterment of the asset. Tangible capital assets transferred to
the City from developers and subdivision are recorded at their fair value at the date of transfer and are also
recorded as revenue. Works of art, cultural and historical assets are not recorded as assets in these
financial statements.
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CITY OF PARKSVILLE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
d)

Non-financial assets (continued)
The tangible capital assets cost, less residual value, of the tangible capital assets is amortized on a straightline basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Land improvements
Buildings
Vehicles, machinery and equipment
Roads, sidewalks and lighting
Storm sewer systems
Water systems and Arrowsmith dam
Sanitary sewer systems

10 - 50 years
50 years
5 - 60 years
20 - 75 years
50 - 70 years
10 - 80 years
10 - 70 years

A full year of amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and none in the year of disposal. Assets
under construction are initially recorded as work in progress and are not amortized until the asset is
available for productive use.
Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the date of receipt and
also are recorded as revenue.
Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer contribute to the City's
ability to provide goods and services, or when the value of future economic benefits associated with the
asset are less than the book value of the asset.
e)

Long term debt
Long term debt is recorded net of repayments and actuarial adjustments.

f)

Employee future benefits
The City and its employees make contributions to the Municipal Pension Plan. The City's contributions are
expensed as incurred.
Sick leave and other retirement benefits are also available to the City's employees. The costs of these
benefits are actuarially determined based on service, attrition, best estimates of retirement ages, interest
rates and future salary and wage increases. The obligation under these benefit plans is accrued based on
the projected benefits as the employees render services necessary to earn the future benefits.
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CITY OF PARKSVILLE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
g)

Contaminated sites
Contaminated sites are defined as the result of contamination being introduced in air, soil, water or sediment
of a chemical, organic, or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds an environmental standard.
A liability for remediation of contaminated sites is recognized, net of any expected recoveries, when all of the
following criteria are met:
1)
2)
3)
4)
5)

h)

an environmental standard exists
contamination exceeds the environmental standard
the City is directly responsible or accepts responsibility for the liability
future economic beneifts will be given up, and
a reasonable estimate of the liability can be made

Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting standards
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets and liabilities,
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the period. Estimates include assumptions used in
estimating historical cost and useful lives of tangible capital assets. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

i)

Measurement uncertainty
In March 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization
which resulted in many governments worldwide enacting emergency measures to contain the spread
of the virus. Restrictions have been put in place by the federal, provincial and municipal governments
in Canada regarding travel, business closures, isolation/quarantine orders, and general reduction in
activities. While these effects are expected to be temporary and relatively short-terrm, the duration of
the disruption and any related financial impact to the City of Parksville cannot be reasonably estimated
at this time. Given the unprecedented and pervasive impact of changing circumstances regarding the
COVID-19 pandemic, there is inherently more uncertainty with respect to the reporting of the City's
operations and financial position as compared to prior periods.

2.

INVESTMENTS
Short-term notes and deposits
Long-term notes and deposits

Cost
Cost

$

2020
33,739,475
20,411 ,137

$

2019
30,234,909
14,615,921

$

54,150,612

$

44,850,830

Short-term notes and deposits have interest rates varying from 1.05% to 3.13% (2019 -1.92% to 3.15%) and
mature in less than one year. Long-term notes and deposits have interest rates varying from 1.19% to 3. 7%
(2019 - 2.55% to 3.13%).
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CITY OF PARKSVILLE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

3.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Property taxes and utilities receivable
Accrued utilities receivable
Accrued development cost charges receivable
Receivable from provincial government
Receivable from federal government
Receivable from other government agencies
Trade accounts receivable
Accrued interest receivable

$

$

4.

$

$

$

2019
652,998
1,212,200
565,589
244,874
514,659
89,034
254,397
794,992

4,328,743

2020
1,319,415
1,148,316
567,133
999,461
708,357
4,742,682

$

$

2019
931,177
248,546
282,975
4,209,150
525,832
6,197,680

DEPOSITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Prepaid property taxes and utilities
Development security deposits
Developer contributions and grant deposits
Other temporary deposits

$

$

6.

3,987,958

$

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Payable to federal government
Payable to provincial government
Payable to other government agencies
Trade accounts payable
Accrued payroll and vacation payable

5.

2020
595,467
1,262,000
894,583
95,850
136,906
59,368
149,872
793,912

2020
2,150,554
4,872,112
333,570
125,610

7,481,846

$

$

2019
2,102,593
2,154,732
333,519
1,111

4,591,955

DEVELOPMENT COST CHARGES

Development cost charges (DCC's) represent funds collected or collectible from developments for capital
purposes as specified by a bylaw under the authority of the Community Charter. The collections from development are recorded as a deferred revenue until such time as they are spent for the purposes specified in the City
bylaw. During 2020, $335,119 was transferred from the Water DCC account to the Roads DCC account
to repay a temporary shortfall in the Water DCC account in 2019. See Schedule 2.
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CITY OF PARKSVILLE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

7.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT ACCRUAL
2020
Retirement benefits actuarial estimated liability

$

539,542

2019
$

496,627

Retirement benefits - employees who retire may qualify for a payout of their accumulated unused sick leave
bank. Union employees may qualify for a 100% payout of up to 60 days of unused sick days and non-union
staff qualify for a 50% payout of their unused sick days up to 261 days maximum payout if certain restrictions
are met. The City calculates the value of this liability based on a statistical analysis of the age and length of
service and the likelihood that employees will reach the age of 60, retire and become eligible for this benefit.
The accrual uses the following assumptions in the liability calculation: discount rate 2.18%, expected future
inflation rates 2.0%, expected salary increases 2.0% and attrition rate of 34.21 % (2019 - 2.12%, 2.0%, 2.0%,
32.97%, respectively).

8.

DEBT
Maturity
Date

Interest
Rate

Dec. 2021
Dec.2022
Apr. 2025

1.75%
2.25%
5.10%

2020

2019

General Revenue Fund - Long Term
Civic and Technology Centre
Civic and Technology Centre
Resort Way Local Improvement

$

76,257
111,645
239,196

$

153,003
164,881
283,527

427,098

601,411

Water Utility Fund - Long Term
Arrowsmith Dam
River Intake and Water
Treatment
River Intake and Water
Treatment

Jun.2021

1.75%

14,347

36,090

Apr. 2043

3.15%

3,772,673

3,888,022

Oct. 2044

2.24%

1,555,816

1,600,000

5,342,836

5,524,112

$

Total long term debt
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5,769,934

$

6,125,523

CITY OF PARKSVILLE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

8.

DEBT (continued)
Principal due over the next five years on debt is as follows:
General Fund
100,351
69,756
47,809
49,028
50,278

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter
Add: actuarial adjustment
$

Total

Water Fund

317,222
109,876

162,366
153,596
153,596
153,596
153,596
2,808,614
3,585,364
1,757,472

427,098

$ 5,342,836

262,717
223,352
201,405
202,624
203,874
2,808,614
3,902,586
1,867,348
$

5,769,934

The City issues its debt instruments through the Municipal Finance Authority (MFA). As a condition of
the long term borrowing, the City is obligated to lodge security by means of demand notes and interest
bearing cash deposits based on the amount of the borrowing. The total security equals one half the annual
instalment of principal and interest, with the cash deposits equal to one percent of the total principal borrowed
and the remainder covered by the demand note. The deposits are included in the City's financial statements
as restricted cash. The restricted cash will be recognized as reduced debt principal and interest payments
in the final year of the debt when the MFA applies the deposits to the debt payments. The total cash held by
the MFA at December 31, 2020 for the City's debt is $112,856 (2019 - $110,581). The demand notes, which
are contingent in nature, are held by the Regional District of Nanaimo to act as security against the possibility
of debt repayment default and are not recorded in the financial statements. Upon the maturity of a debt issue,
the demand notes are released. As at December 31, 2020, there were contingent demand notes
of $195,515 (2019 - $195,515) outstanding.

9.

TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
2020
Cost:
Land and land improvements
Buildings
Vehicles, machinery and equipment
Infrastructure:
Roads, sidewalks and lighting
Storm sewer systems
Water systems and Arrowsmith dam
Sanitary sewer systems
Work in progress

$

Less: Accumulated amortization
Net book value
14

61,764,883
27,303,122
21,043,971

2019
$

61,486,554
27,273,144
20,835,067

66,607,802
30,091,923
45,320,477
17,396,849
1,516,610

66,003,988
29,668,445
44,832,408
17,384,749
1,331 ,056

271,045,637

268,815,411

74,737,405

70,008,495

$ 196,308,232

$ 198,806,916

CITY OF PARKSVILLE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

9.

TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)
Land and land improvements include the cost of land under roads recognized at fair market value at the date
of acquisition. Contributed tangible capital assets are recognized at fair market value at the date of contribution .
In 2020, tangible capital assets contributed total $302,255 (2019 - $4,137,649).
During 2020, tangible capital assets of $72,812 were written down (2019 - nil).
For more details on additions, disposals and amortization, refer to Schedule 1.

10. ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
2020
Restricted Surplus
General revenue fund reserves for future expenditures
COVID-19 Restart Grant
Water utility fund reserves for future expenditures
Sewer utility fund reserves for future expenditures
Equity in Arrowsmith Water Services Joint Venture reserves
General revenue fund capital reserve
Water utility fund capital reserve
Sewer utility fund capital reserve
Reserve funds (Schedule 3)

Unrestricted Surplus
General revenue fund
Water utility fund
Sewer utility fund

Equity in tangible capital assets
General revenue fund
Water utility fund
Sewer utility fund

$

2,605,599
1,882,300
468,400
264,600
271,361

2019
$

3,546,050
645,000
340,500
252,191

5,492,260
1,956,234
602,334
968,822
6,804,970

4,783,741
1,912,534
588,878
947,179
5,708,583

15,824,620

13,940,915

16,736,129
6,458,253
3,833,787

12,087,783
4,993,361
3,414,989

27,028,169

20,496,133

127,753,035
52,745,855
10,039,408

128,743,315
53,654,862
10,283,216

190,538,298

192,681 ,393

$ 233,391,087

$ 227,118,441

The restricted surplus represents reserves to be used to fund specified future expenditures, as authorized by
Council. It includes statutory reserves set up by bylaw under the authority of the Community Charter, a reserve
fund for the federal gas tax program which must be spent on stipulated projects, and reserve accounts for which
Council is not restricted by external parties in providing for the use of funds.
The unrestricted surplus represents the accumulated operating surpluses of the City.
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CITY OF PARKSVILLE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

11. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS
a)

The City is responsible, as a member of the Regional District of Nanaimo and the Nanaimo Regional
Hospital District, for its proportion of any operating deficits or capital debt related to functions in which
it participates.

b)

The City has issued demand notes to the Regional District of Nanaimo totalling $195,515 in connection with
debt through the MFA (Note 8). These notes are callable only if required by the Regional District.

c)

The City and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (the Plan), a jointly trusteed pension
plan. The Board of Trustees, representing Plan members and employers, is responsible for administering
the Plan, including investment of the assets and administration of benefits. The plan is a multi-employer
defined benefit pension plan. Basic pension benefits provided are based on a formula. As at December 31,
2019, the Plan has approximately 213,000 active members and approximately 106,000 retired members.
Active members include approximately 41,000 contributors from local government.
Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plan and
adequacy of plan funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and member
contribution rate to fund the Plan. The actuary's calculated contribution rate is based on the entry-age
normal cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member and employer contributions sufficient
to provide benefits for average future entrants to the Plan. This rate may be adjusted for the amortization
of any actuarial funding surplus and will be adjusted for the amortization of any unfunded actuarial liability.
The most recent valuation for the Plan as at December 31, 2018, indicated a $2.866 billion funding surplus
for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis. The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2021,
with results available in 2022.
Employers participating in the Plan record their pension expen~e as the amount of employer contributions
made during the fiscal year (defined contribution plan accounting). This is because the Plan records
accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the Plan in aggregate resulting in no consistent and reliable
basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to the individual employers participating in the Plan.
In 2020 the City of Parksville paid $627,176 (2019 - $578,745) for employer contributions to the Plan.
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11. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS (continued)
d)

The City enters into commitments for both capital and operational expenses in the normal course of
business. These commitments have been budgeted for with in the appropriate annual budget and have
been approved by Council.
At December 31 , 2020, the following major contracts were in progress:
Total Amount
of Contract
Information technology operating agreements
Parks, facilities and cultural services projects
Transportation infrastructure improvement projects
Vehicle purchases
Water infrastructure projects

$

242 ,100
420,200
2,531,400
1,193,500
3,647,700

Amount Paid or
Accrued
$

148,500
315,100
1,789,800
3,332,900

e)

Other contingent liabilities consisting of routine claims will be accounted for as an expense in the period
in which the costs are likely and estimatable. It is not possible to determine the City's liability, if any, with
respect to these other matters.

f)

The City's contractual rights arise from rights to receive payments under agreements.
The Administrative Agreement on the Federal Gas Tax Funds in British Columbia took effect on April 1,
2014 and provides the framework for delivery of federal Gas Tax funding to local governments during the
term 2014-2024. Gas Tax funds provides funding for investment in infrastructure and capacity building
projects that meet one of three objectives: productivity and economic growth, a clean environment and
strong cities and communities. The City is entitled to the following payments from the Community Works
Fund:
2021/22
608,646
608,646
2022/23
635,246
2023/24
$
1,852,538
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CITY OF PARKSVILLE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

12. TAXATION
In addition to taxes levied for municipal purposes, the City is legally obligated to collect taxes on behalf of the
following authorities.

Gross property tax levied

$

2020
27,625,959

$

2019
27,355,325

Less: amouts levied and paid to other Authorities
Province of British Columbia (School tax)
Regional District of Nanaimo
Nanaimo Regional Hospital District
British Columbia Assessment Authority
Parksville Downtown Business Improvement Area
Municipal Finance Authority
Tax collections not included in the City's revenue and expenses

5,599,567
3,364,789
688,300
187,553
180,000
858
10,021,067

6,177,840
3,009,099
660,355
165,189
175,000
812
10,188,295

Less: amount included in Water and Sewer User Fees Revenue
and paid to the Regional District of Nanaimo

2,040,580

2,300,038

Net taxation for municipal purposes

$

15,564,312

$

14,866,992

The Regional District of Nanaimo wastewater levy is being funded by a combination of property taxes of
$2,040,580 (2019-$2,300,038) and sewer user fees of $507,843 (2019-$250,000). In 2020, the total
wastewater levy of $2,548,423 (2019-$2,550,038) is included in Sewer Services expenses as part of this
transition.

18

CITY OF PARKSVILLE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

13. GOVERNMENT TRANSFERS AND GRANTS
Government transfers and capital grants reported on the Consolidated Statement of Operations are comprised of
2020
Government operating transfers:
Small community and traffic fines grant
COVID-19 Safe Restart grant
Other grants

$
$

Government capital transfers:
Federal gas tax grant
Other grants
Repayment of RON supportive housing grant

439,361
2,861,000
211 ,593
3,511,954

2019
$
$

57,953
482,382

582,114

1,166,217
268,550
(492,504)
942,263

582,114
Other non-government grants:

23,141
$

4,117,209

424,429

34,000
$

1,458,645

In 2017 the Regional District of Nanaimo provided a capital grant of $659,000 to the City of Parksville for the
purchase of land at 222 Garfield Street on which to locate a supportive housing, homeless shelter and social
services facility per Contribution Agreement dated March 2017. This Agreement also granted the RON an
option to purchase the land as part of a future RON service or if certain conditions were not met. Following the
removal of the homeless shelter component from the facility design, a new agreement was reached with the
RON in April 2019 to repay all but the City's portion of the RON grant ($492,504) in exchange the discharge of
the purchase option.
14. SEGMENTED INFORMATION
The City of Parksville provides a diverse range of services to its citizens including water and sewer, fire,
police, bylaw, building inspections and park maintenance among others. The City maintains three separate
funds (general revenue, water revenue and sewer revenue) to account for the services. Each fund is
expected to cover its expenditures through its own revenue collections.
City services are provided by departments and their activities are reported in one of these funds. Certain
departments have been amalgamated to reduce the number of segments and provide information along the
following related functional lines:
Protective Services
Includes the provision of police, fire, bylaw and emergency services. The City shares costs in a regional
police force that serves Parksville, Qualicum Beach, French Creek, Errington and other local areas within the
Regional District of Nanaimo. The City of Parksville has an allocation of 17 police officers. The Parksville
volunteer fire department includes 3 full time officers, 2 paid member and 36 volunteer members and provides
first responder services in addition to fire protection to Parksville and part of the Regional District of Nanaimo
(San Pariel, Martindale Road and half of French Creek). Bylaw enforcement is provided by 3 full-time
bylaw officers. Emergency services are coordinated by 1 staff member and a service contract.
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14. SEGMENTED INFORMATION (continued)
Engineering and Public Works
Responsible for the delivery of municipal public works services including the planning, development and
maintenance of roads, sidewalks, street lighting, traffic signals, and snow removal.
The engineering department also contracts itself to the water and sewer revenue funds for the planning and
development of the City's water and sewer infrastructure.
Parks, Facilities and Cultural Services
Maintains the City's numerous parks and roadside greenery. It also maintains the recreational sports fields,
hard courts, dog park, children's playgrounds and City facilities.
Cultural services include the costs paid to the Vancouver Island Regional Library and Parksville community
centres.
Community Planning
Manages urban development for environmental concerns, local neighbourhoods and the downtown through
City planning, community development, parks and sustainability planning. It ensures acceptable quality of
building construction and property maintenance through enforcement of construction and building codes and
standards. It also assists economic development through review and approval of land development plans,
application of zoning by-laws and processing of building permit applications.
General Government
Provides services for legislative and general administration as well as financial management, revenue
collection, human resources and information technology.
Other Services
Includes activities which do not easily fit into any of the above segment categories including unallocated
common service costs and insurance.
Water, Sewer, and Solid Waste
Water and Sewer are each accounted for in their own funds and are consolidated for segmentation purposes.
The water fund is responsible for providing water to the citizens of Parksville including the maintenance of the
water distribution and supply system. The sewer fund is responsible for the maintenance of the sanitary sewer
collection system. The planning and development of the systems is provided by the Engineering department.
Solid waste collection and disposal is contracted out by the City to the Regional District of Nanaimo.
See Schedule 4 for a detailed summary of the revenues and expenses of each segment for 2020. The
accounting policies used in these segments are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the
financial statements as disclosed in Note 1. Taxation revenue is not allocated to the segments and
consolidation eliminations are not removed from the segments.
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15. INVESTMENT IN LOCAL GOVERNMENT PARTNERSHIPS
The City is involved in two joint venture partnerships, Arrowsmith Water Service and Englishman River Water
Service, relating to the storage and provision of bulk drinking water. The joint ventures construct, operate and
maintain the facilities necessary to provide potable water. Financial statements are prepared and audited for
each joint venture partnership. The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards except that amortization of tangible capital assets is not recorded in the partnership
financial statements but rather by each partner in their own respective consolidated financial statements.
Arrowsmith Water Service Joint Venture
The City is in a partnership agreement with the Town of Qualicum Beach and the Regional District of Nanaimo
to operate and maintain the Arrowsmith dam. Costs are shared proportionately between the partners depending
on their ownership percentage of the dam and/or their water usage percentage. The City accounts for its share
of the partnership (63.9%) using the proportionate consolidation method of accounting. The City's share of the
partnership's assets, liabilities, accumulated surplus, and revenues and expenses are summarized below:

2019

2020
Financial assets
Financial liabilities
Non financial assets
Accumulated surplus

$

Revenues
Expenses

429,027

$

413,570

4 ,126,289
4,397,649

4,126,289
4,378,479

63,034

48,537

Englishman River Water Service Joint Venture
The City is in a partnership agreement with the Regional District of Nanaimo to operate and maintain the ERWS
transmission line, river intake and water treatment plant. Construction of these facilities was completed in 2019.
Costs are shared proportionately between the partners depending on their ownership percentage in the
partnership. The City accounts for its share of the partnership (74%) using the proportionate consolidation
method of accounting. The City's share of the partnership's assets, liabilities, accumulated surplus, and revenues
and expenses are summarized below:

2019

2020
Financial assets
Financial liabilities
Non financial assets
Accumulated surplus

$

Revenues
Expenses
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$
33,190,058
33,190,058

450,981
450,981
33,037,201
33,037,201

583,319

268,550
296,679

CITY OF PARKSVILLE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

16. ANNUAL BUDGET

The budget data presented in these financial statements is based upon the Final Annual Budget adopted by
Council on May 4, 2020. The reconciliation below reconciles the approved final budget to the budget figures
reported in these financial statements.
Revenues:
Consolidated revenues per budget bylaw
Less: lnterfund revenues eliminated upon consolidation

$

30,131,750
(66,000)

Revenues per Consolidated Statement of Operations

$

30,065,750

Expenses:
Consolidated expenses per budget bylaw
Less: lnterfund expenses eliminated upon consolidation

$

27,727,180
(66,000)

Expenses per Consolidated Statement of Operations

$

27,661,180
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SCHEDULE 1

CITY OF PARKSVILLE
SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020

ASSET COST
Balance
December 31,
2019

Land
Land improvements

$

53,641,275

2020
Additions

$

ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION

Disposals
and
Writedowns

Balance
December 31 ,
2020

Balance
December 31,
2019

2020
Amortization

$

$

$

$

53,641 ,275

2020
Disposals

$

NET BOOK VALUE

Balance
December 31,
2020

2020

$

$

53,641,275

2019

$

53,641 ,275

7,845,279

278,329

8,123,608

3,534,701

327,215

3,861 ,916

4,261,692

4,310,578

27,273,144

29,978

27,303,122

3,463,983

542,429

4,006,412

23,296,710

23,809,161

Vehicles and equipment

20,835,067

301,785

92,881

21,043,971

4,823,453

1,258,667

90,658

5,991,462

15,052,509

16,011,614

Roads, sidewalks, lighting

66,003,988

713,007

109,193

66 ,607,802

27,562,592

1,286,006

84,134

28,764,464

37,843,338

38,441 ,396

30,091,923

10,006,957

502,847

59,394

45,320,477

13,385,926

726,020

17,396,849
1,516,610

7,230,883

295,069

71 ,354
332,822

$ 271,Q4~637

$ 70,008,495

Buildings

Stonm sewer system

29,668,445

423,478

Water system & AWS dam

44,832,408

547,463

Sanitary sewer system

17,384,749

12,100

1,331 ,056

256,908

$ 268,815,411

$ 2,563,048

Work in progress

$

$ 4,938,253

34,551

$

209,343

10,509,804

19,582,119

19,661 ,488

14,077,395

31 ,243,082

31,446,482

7,525,952

9,870,897

10,153,866

1,516,610

1,331 ,056

$ 196,308,232

$ 198,806,916

$ 74,737,405

Certain 2019 tangible capital assets comparative infonmation has been reclassified to reflect financial statement presentation adopted in the current year.
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SCHEDULE 2

SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT COST CHARGE ACTIVITIES
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020

Public Open
Space

Balance at beginning of year
Less:
Prior year development cost charge
receivables
Add:
Development cost charge collections
Current year development cost charge
receivables
Interest
Internal transfers
Less:
Transfers to:
General capital projects
Water capital projects

Balance at end of year

$ 2,531,987

Sanitary
Sewer

Water

$

-

$

59,116

Storm Sewer

$

49,033

Roads

$

3,547,727

$

2020

2019

Total

Total

6,187,863

$

5,074,136

(299,840)

(3,715)

(10,631)

(241,033)

50,320

1,466,135

15,865

42,138

552,348

2,126,806

2,360,363

19,269
57,673

556,337
(1,189)
(335,119)

6,184
1,474

17,835
1,496

294,958
89,694
335,119

894,583
149,148

565,589
136,809

(80,801)
(404,458)

(133,719)
(1 ,815,315)

(10,370)

-

-

-

(79,949)

(565,589)

(852)

(404,458)

$ 2,568,930

$

981 ,866

$

24

78,924

$

99,871

$

4,577,961

$

8,307,552

$

6,187,863

CITY OF PARKSVILLE

SCHEDULE 3

SCHEDULE OF RESERVE FUND ACTIVITIES
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020

General
Parkland
Reserve

Land Sale
Reserve

Balance at beginning of year

$

13,392

$

414,224

Off Street
Parking
Reserve

$

247,773

Federal Gas
Tax Reserve

Equipment
Replacement
Reserve

$

$

3,863,514

1,169,680

$

2020

2019

Total
Reserves

Total
Reserves

5,708,583

$

4,264,847

Add:

-

Transfer from General Fund
Contributions
Proceeds on sale of equipment
Equipment charge to operations
Interest earned

9,465

$

13,698

-

77,100

-

582,114

306

Less:
Transfers to:
General capital
Equipment operations
Equipment capital

Balance at end of year

-

-

-

5,661

93,632

-

(120,674)

-

423,689

$

253,434
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-

-

$

6,605
807,119
30,422

$

4,418,586

(361,871)
(33,492)

$

1,695,563

$

77,100
582,114
6,605
807,119
139,486

1,395,317
61,500
609,975
126,483

(120,674)
(361,871)
(33,492)

(195,785)
(353,729)
(200,025)

6,804,970

$

5,708,583

SCHEDULE4

CITY OF PARKSVILLE
SCHEDULE OF SEGMENTED DISCLOSURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Protective
Services

Revenues
Taxation
Fees and charges
Other sources
Capital grants and developer contributions
Transfers from DCC reserves
Internal charges
Gain {loss) on disposal of tangible
capital assets

$
108,689
764,584

873.273
Expenses
Labour
Consulting and contract services
Other
Internal charges
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Interest

Segment surplus (deficit)

1,574,152
2,548,991
308,105
64,491
239,301

Engineering
and
Public Works

Parks,
Facilities
and Cultural
Services

$

$
263,356
75,093
155,436
852
418,300
(20,677)
892,360

2,048,124
231,404
616,312

4,735,040

2,156,740
47,079
5,099,659

$ (3,861,767)

$ (4,207,299)

735,124
13,270
337,546
65,309
79,949

Community
Plannin_g

General
Government

$

$ 14,762,043
71,773
3,084,264
916,914

691,191

Other
Services

$

$

848,681

107,969

1,231 ,198

691 ,191

19,683,675

107,969

1,349,326
1,531,005
548,726
28,890
500,317

697,179
16,150
19,291

2,460,540
331,100
353,422

66,415
203,506

3,958,264

732,620

$ (2,727,066)

$

(41,429)
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103,627
22,614
3,271 ,303
$ 16,412,372

Water, Sewer
and
Solid Waste

$
220,993

2020

2019

Consolidated
Totals

Consolidated
Totals

$15,564,312
8,782,717
5,454,484
1,242,313
485,259

$14,866,992
9,383,902
2,516,257
5,376,005
1,949,034

(44,063)
31,485.022

38,107
34.130.297

9,201 ,007
5,576,745
5,260,714

8,943,628
5,398,415
5,571 ,864

4,938,253
235,657
25,212,376

3,953,205
235,351
24,102,463

$ 6,272,646

$10,027,834

(1 ,374,950)
(23,386)
9,159.313

1,071 ,686
851,680
3,211,352
1,281,569
1,938,268
165,964
8,520,519

269,921
$ (161,952)

67,145
7,634,438
972,004
104,654
404,458

Adjustments
and
Eliminations

$

638,794

(1,153,957)

(1,374,950)

(1,374,950)
$

220,993

SCHEDULE 5
(Unaudited)

CITY OF PARKSVILLE
COVID-19 SAFE RESTART GRANT
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

2020
Grant received (November 2020)

$

Allocations:
Revenue shortfalls:
Investment income
Tax penalties
Water fees
Sewer fees

2,861 ,000

122,400
37,000
478,500
158,800
796 ,700

Increased expenses:
Labour
Unplanned pandemic response costs

85,600
96,400

Total eligible allocations of grant

978,700

Balance of grant remaining (included in Restricted Surplus)
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$

1,882,300
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